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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This Corporate Governance statement sets out the governance framework adopted by the Board of
Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited and Its subsidiary {"the Group and the Bank"),

Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited is committed to adhering to the highest standards of good corporate
governance at all levels of its operations. This commitment s rooted in our core values and beliefs. We
have put in place elaborate governance processes, which comply with industry best practice,

In the year under review, the Bank or Group complied with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines on corporate governance.

The Group's governance framework enables the Board to fulfil its role of providing oversight and
strategic counsel in balance with its responsibility to ensure conformance with regulatory reguirements
and risk tolerance. It also provides the parameters for delegating its authority.

Code and regulations

As a licensed commercial Bank and listed company on the Uganda Stock Exchange (USE), the Bank
operates in a highly regulated environment and is committed to complying with legislation, regulations,
and codes of best practice,

Complying with all applicable legislation, regulations, standards and codes is integral to the Bank's
culture. The Board delegates responsibility for compliance to management and monitors this through
the compliance function, Oversight of compliance risk management is delegated to the Audit
Committee, which annually reviews and approves the compliance plan. On a quarterly basis, the Audit
Committee receives reports from the Compliance function on, among other things, the status of
compliance risk management in the Bank and significant areas of non-compliance. On a quarterly basis,
the Audit Committee also reviews the significant interactions and correspondences with the Regulator.
The compliance function and governance standards are subject to review by internal audit.

Whilst the Bank continues to nurture a strong culture of governance and responsible risk management
in line with Group's risk appetite and governance framework, it is constantly monitoring its practices to
ensure that they are best fit for it and serve to enhance business and community objectives

Board of Directors
Board charter and work plan

The Board's responsibilities are set out in the Board Charter. The Board Charter contains provisions,
which ensure that the Board observes best practice in corporate governance and contains among other
things policies on: the size, role and functions of the Board; appointments and induction of Directors;
Board performance evaluation; and remuneration of Directors.

The work plan has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for the Board’s attention to ensure
it exercises full control over all significant matters. It sets out the schedule of meetings of the Board
and its Committees and the main business to be dealt with at those meetings. Additional meetings are
scheduled as and when necessary,

Board composition and appointments
The Board currently consists of;
« Chairman

1
* Executive Directors 2
« Non-Executive Directors 4



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The MWon-Executive Directors are drawn from a wide range of business and other backgrounds, This
diversity is considered by the members as one of the strengths of the Board,

The Board takes cognisance of the knowledge, skills and experience of prospective Directors as well as
other attributes considered necessary for the role and as such, there is a formal process of appointment
of Directors. The appointment of Directors is governed by the Bank's articles of associations and is
subject to regulatory approval (i.e. Fit and proper test) as required by the Financial Institutions Act.

The Board evaluates the performance of the management in order to be satisfied as to the integrity and
strength of financial infarmation, controls and risk management. Through the Board Persannel and
Administration Committee, the Board exercises oversight in appointing, removing and succession
planning of senior management,

All Directors receive regular and timely information about the Bank prior to Board meetings. They also
have access to the Company Secretary for any further information they may require. Directors have
unrestricted access to management and the Bank information as well as resources required to carry out
their roles and responsibilities.

Board meetings

The full Board meets at least four times a year. The Board deals with all significant matters including
strategic direction for the Bank and Group; ensuring competent management of the business; internal
control; compliance with laws and regulations and reporting performance to shareholders,

Attendance at meetings

The attendance of members at Board during 2018 |s detailed below:

Name of Director a1 (o2 |03 |aa

Mr. Dhizaala Moses . L4 L MA,

Mr., Ashwin Kumar v ¥ L4 L4 ¥  Attendance
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma - o - - & Apology

Mr. Sempijja Thadeueas “ v " - MA Mot applicable
Mr, Manoj Kumar Bakshi * N *

Mrs.\Vastina Rukimirana Nsanze M& o ¥ «

Dr. Fred Kakongoro Muhumuza Na  [NA |NA | ¥

Separation of roles and responsibilities

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are separate. The Chairman’s main responsibility is
to lead and manage the work of the Board to ensure that it operates effectively and fully discharges its
legal and regulatory responsibilities. The Board has delegated the responsibility for the day-to-day
management of the Bank to the Managing Director, who is responsible for recommending strategy to
the Board, and for making and implementing operational decisions.

The Board has a collective responsibility for the success of the Bank and Group. However, the Executive
Directors have direct responsibility for business operations, whereas Non-Executive Directors are
responsible for bringing independent judgment and scrutiny to decisions taken by the Management,
providing objective challenge to the management.

Committees of the Board

In order for the Board to carry out its functions, and to ensure independent oversight of internal control
and risk management, certain aspects of its role are delegated to Board Committees, The specific
matters for which delegated authority has been given are set out in each Board Committee’s terms of
reference, which are reviewed as and when required.



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTIMUED)

The Board had delegated authority to six principal Board Committees:
Board Audit Committee

Board Credit Committee

Board Risk Committee

Board Assets and Liabilities Committee

Board Personnel and administration Committes

Board Compensation Committes

The Board Personnel and Administration Committes and Board Compensation Committes have now
been merged and named as Board Human resources and Compensation Committee,

These Committees meet at least on a quarterly basis or on adhoc whenever there are urgent matters
to attend to.

In addition, the Executive Committee, comprising the Managing Directar and his Senior Management
meet on a monthly basis. Its main function is to implement and monitar the Bank's strategy, operational
plans and financial performance. It is also responsible for the assessment and management of risk,

Board Audit Committee

This Committee is constituted in accordance with the Financial Institutions Act, which requires the Board
to appoint at least two MNon-Executive Directors to the Committee. As per the law, the Board has

appointed the members of the Committee, which is comprised solely of independent Mon-Executive
Directors.

The role of this Committee is to assess the integrity and effectiveness of accounting, financial
compliance and control systems. The Committee has a constructive relationship with Internal Audit,
who has access to the Committee members as required.

The Committee also ensures effective communication between the internal auditors, external auditors,
the Board, management and regulators. The Committee considers reports from internal audit on any
weaknesses in controls that have been identified, including financial controls, and considers corrective
actions to be implemented by management to prevent such incidences recurring. This takes place on
an ongoing basis,

The Audit Committee has complied with its mandate in the year under review, as well as its
responsibilities. Four scheduled meetings were held.

Name of Director Q1 Q2 Q3 04

Mr. Sempijja Thadeues - w v v *  Attendance
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma ¥ w NA  NA A Apology

Mr, Manoj Kumar Bakshi * v NA  NA MNA Mot applicable
Mrs.Vastina Rukimirana MNsanze A _NA o NA

Dr. Fred Kakongoro Muhumuza MNA  MNA  NA b

The role of this Committee is ta ensure that effective frameworks for credit governance are in place in
the Bank. This involves ensuring that the Management Credit Committee and the credit function operate
according to clearly defined mandates and delegated authority, and providing for the adequate
management, measurement, monitoring and control of credit risk. The Committee reports to the Board
on credit portfolios, adequacy of provisions and status of non-performing loans, Further detail on the
management of credit risk is set out in the Note 4 (a).

The Committee’s composition includes both Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The
Credit Committee complied with its mandate for the year under review. Four scheduled meetings were
held.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

MName of Director Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma ¥ ¥ v v ¥ Attendance
“I'*;'l';: Sempijja Thadeues w o MA - A Apology

Mr. Manoj Kumar Bakshi e v v W MNA Mot applicable
Mr. Ashwin Kumar ¥ v 4 L

Mrs.Vastina Rukimirana Nsanze MA A ] M

Board Personnel and administration Committee

The purpose of this Committee is to attend to human capital and administrative matters within the
Bank. The Committee oversees the administrative matters affecting the Bank as well as the welfare,
talent and skill development, and other human capital matters.

The Committee's composition includes Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Committee complied
with its mandate for the year under review. Four scheduled meetings were held.

Name of Director Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma ¢ “ v v ¥ Attendance
Mr. Sempijja Thadeues v v - A A Apology

Mr. Manoj Kumar Bakshi o “ * “ N& Mot applicable
Mr. Ashwin Kumar ” o v v

Dr. Fred Kakongoro Muhumuza NA NA NA ¥

Board Risk Committee

The Board is ultimately responsible for risk management. The main purpose of the Committee is to
provide independent and objective owversight of risk management within the Bank. A number of
management Committees help the Committee to fulfil its mandate, the main one of these being the risk
management committee. To achieve oversight, the Committes reviews and assesses the integrity of
risk control systems and ensures that risk policies and strategies are managed effectively and contribute
to a culture of discipline and control that reduces the opportunity of fraud. Assurance on the
effectiveness of the risk management processes is provided to the Committee through management
reporting.

The Committee’s composition includes Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Committee complied
with its mandate for the year under review. Four scheduled meetings were held.,

MName of Director Q1L Q2 Q3 Q4

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma P - * W ” Attendance
Mr. Manoj Kumar Bakshi =4 = “ - A Apology

Mr. Sempijja Thadeues et ¥ ¥ v MA Mot applicable
Dr. Fred Kakongoro Muhumuza NA  NA NA o

Board Assets and Liabilities Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee of the Board (BALCO) has been established to assist the Board of
Directors by assessing the adequacy and monitoring the implementation, of the Group and the Bank's
Asset and Liability Management Policy ("ALM Policy") and related procedures. The ALM Policy includes
specific policies and procedures relating to (i) interest rate risk, (11} market/investment risk, (i) liguidity
risk, and (iv) capital risk. BALCO |s supported by the management Committee (ALCO) which reports on
a quarterly basis to help the Committee to fulfil its mandate, the main one of these being the asset
liability management. The Committee is involved in management of treasury limits, approvals of
internal liquidity limits, oversight on the investment portfolic and its mix, management of foreign
currency placements and deposits with correspondent Banks among others.

The Committee’s composition includes Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Committee complied
with Its mandate for the year under review. Four scheduled meetings were held.
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Mame of Director Q1L Q2 Q3 Q4

Mr. Manoj Kumar Bakshi R v . ¥ Attendance
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma ” v, v' w A Apology

Dr. Fred Kakongoro Muhumuza MA  MA  NA < MA Mot applicable

Board Compensation Committes

The purpose of this Committee is to provide oversight on the compensation of Staff (including key
personnel) and ensure that the compensation is consistent with the Bank's objectives and strategy.
Furthermaore, the Committee performs other duties related to the Bank's compensation structure |n
accordance with applicable laws, rules, policies and regulations.

The Committee comprises of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors. No individual, irrespective of
position, is present when his or her remuneration s discussed. The Committee complied with its
mandate for the year under review. Four scheduled meetings were held.

Mame of Director Q1L 0Q Q3 04

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma * v v v *  Attendance
Mr. Sempijja Thadeues .l I G- A Apology

Mr. Manoj Kumar Bakshi v b v MA NA Not applicable
Mr. Ashwin Kumar v v ’ ¢

Company Secretary

The role of the Bank Secretary is to ensure the Board remains cognisant of its duties and responsibilities.
In addition to guiding the Board on discharging Its responsibilities, the Bank Secretary keeps the Board
abreast of relevant changes in legislation and govermance best practices. The Bank Secretary also
oversees the induction of new Directors as well as the continuous education of Directors. To enable the
Board to function effectively, all Directors have full and timely access to information that may be
relevant to the proper discharge of their duties, This includes information such as announcements,
investor communications and other developments, which may affect the Bank and its operations. All
Directors have access to the services of the Secretary,

Internal control and risk management
Internal control

The Directars are responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal control,
including internal financlal control. This is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding {a) the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition and (b) the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial infermation used within the
business or for publication. These controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives due to circumstances, which may reasonably be foreseen and can
anly provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal control framework

Effective corporate governance remains key to the business. The Bank continues to review its internal
control framework to ensure it maintains a strong and effective internal control environment. The
effectiveness of the framework has been under regular review by the senior management.

Directors' remuneration

The remuneration of all Directors |s subject to regular monitoring to ensure that levels of remuneration
are appropriate. Information on the remuneration received and dealings of the Directors with the Bank
are included in note 31(e).

Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for their service on the Board and a meeting attendance fee for
Board Committee meetings, Fees are paid quarterly in arrears, There are no contractual arrangements
for compensation for loss of office. Mon-Executive Directors do not receive short-term incentives, nor
do they participate in any long-term incentives schemes. The Board Human Capital Committee reviews
the fees paid to Mon-Executive Directors annually and makes recommendations to the Board for
consideration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Risk management

The Bank has a structure and process to help identify, assess and manage risks, This process has been
in place throughout the year.

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all shareholders. The Annual General
Meeting (AGM) as well as the published annual report is used as an opportunity to communicate with

all shareholders. The Bank will give shareholders 21 days’ notice of the AGM as provided for in the
Companies Act, 2012,

10



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated and separate financial
statements ("the financial statements") for the year ended 31 December 2018, which disclose the state
of affairs of Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited and its subsidiary (the 'Group' and the "Bank” or the
"Company”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is principally engaged in the business of providing Banking and other related services to the
aeneral public.

The principal activities of Baroda Capital Markets (U) Limited (the subsidiary) is brokerage of securities
and shares traded on the Uganda Securities Exchange.

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AS ON 31 DECEMBER 2018

+ Deposits Increased by 11.61% in 2018 to Shs 1,302,169 Million from Shs 1,166,687 Million in
2017,

* Advances net of impairment provisions increased by 22.81% in 2018 to Shs757,189 Million from
Shs 616,574 Milllon in 2017,

= Total Business (Deposits + Advances) increased by 14.42 % in 2018 to Shs 2,066,274 Million
from Shs 1,805,801, Million in 2017.

« Total assets increased by 11.62 % in 2018 to Shs 1,713,853 Million from Shs 1,535,463 Million in
2017,

= Total income increased by 12.60% to Shs 195,820 Million in 2018 from Shs 173,910 Million in
2017,

+  Net Profit after Tax increased by 48.73.% in 2018 to Shs 73,421 Million from Shs 49,366 Million in
2017.

« Gross NPA as a percentage of total advances is at 2.15% in 2018 decreased from 12.77% in
2017,

» Capital Adequacy Ratlo as at 31 December 2018 was 31,64 %( 2017:31,71%)-Tier I and 33.28%
(2017:33.54%) Total Capital.

* Return on Assets as at 31 December 2018 was 4.46 %({ 2017:3.38%).

= Return on shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2018 was 21,79 %{ 2017:16.97%).

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised, issued and fully paid share capital of the Bank was Shs 25 Billion (2017: Shs 25
Billion) representing 2,500 million shares (2017: 2,500 million) of Shs 10 each (2017: 2,500 million
share of Shs 10 each).

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of Shs 10.0 per share (2017: Shs 7.5
per share) amounting to a total of Shs 25,000,000,000 (2017: Shs 18,750,000,000),

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's and Bank' s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, Including credit risk and the
effects of changes in ligquidity, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Bank or Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the acceptable level of risk and the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Trading
limits are set for the trading book to contain losses within a prescribed amount in the event of adverse
price movements.

The Bank has policies in place to ensure that Banking services are availed to customers with
performance and credit history.

DIRECTORS

During the year, the following changes occurred in the Board Directorships;- Mr, Dhizaala Moses's term
ended on 5th November 2018 and was subsequently replaced by Mrs. Vastina Rukimirana Nsanze on
6th November 2018. Mr. Kakongore Fred Muhumuza was appointed as Director on Board of the Bank
on 22nd November 2018 and Mr. Odoch Charles Langoya on 8™January 2019 respectively,

11



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN SHARES

At 31 December, 2018, the following Director has held a direct interest in the Bank’s ordinary issued
share capltal as reflected in the table below:

Director MNumber of shares

Mr. Ashwini Kumar {Managing Director) 1,250

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

During the peried since the last Annual General Meeting of members to the date of this report, no
Director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit other than Directors’ fees and
amounts/allowances received under employment contracts for Executive Directors. The aggregate
amount of emoluments for Directors’ services rendered in the financial year is disclosed under Note
31(e) to the financial statements. MNeither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the
year did there exist any arrangement to which the institution is a party whereby Directors might acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited (the Bank) monitors the adequacy of its capital using ratios
established by the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions
(Amendment) Act, 2018, These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Bank’s eligible capital
with Its statement of financial position assets and off-statement of financial position commitments at a
weighted amount to reflect their relative risk,

Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional credit and market risk, being assigned a
risk weighting according to the amount of capital deemed to be necessary to support them. Four
categories of risk weights (0%, 20%, 50% and 100%) are applied. e.g. Notes, coins and other cash
assets, balances held with Bank of Uganda including securities issued by the Government of Uganda
and securities held under the Bank of Uganda have a zero risk weighting, which means that no capital
is required to support the holding of these assets. Loans and Advances, Property and equipment carry
a 100% risk weighting, Based on the existing guidelines this means that they must be supported by
capital equal to 100% of the risk-weighted amount. Other asset categories have intermediate
weightings.

Off-balance sheet credit related commitments such as guarantees and acceptances, performance bonds,
documentary credit etc., are taken Into account by applying different categories of credit risk conversion
factors, designed to convert these items into balance sheet eguivalents. The credit conversion factors
used by the Bank closely follow those under Basel 11 Accord. The resulting credit equivalent amounts
are then weighted for credit risk using the same percentages as for balance shest assets.

Core capital (Tier 1) consists of paid-up share capital, retained profits less non-dealing
investments, Supplementary capital (Tier 2) includes revaluation reserves on property, unencumbered
general provisions and non-dealing investments,

Disclosures in respect to capital management and capital adequacy ratios are set out in Note 4 {e),
Risk weighted amounts for loans and advances to customers are stated net of impairment losses, These
balances have also been offset against fixed deposits and short-term deposits placed by customers as

securities. There is no borrower with either funded or non-funded facilities, exceeding twenty five
percent of total capital.

12



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
OPERATING AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENTS

The year opened with an exchange rate of US$/Shs 3,640 in the month of January 2018 and averaged
at 3,735 but closed at US$/Shs. 3,710 by end of December 2018,

The Bank complied with the minimum core capital and total capital requirements, with 31.64% and
33.28 % against requlatary requirement of 10% and 12% respectively

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank's Corporate Governance philosophy encompasses not only Regulatory and legal reguirements,
but also several best practices aimed at a high level of Business ethics, effective supervision and
enhancement of value for all the stakeholders. The corporate governance framework is based on an
effective and independent Board, the separation of the Board's supervisory role from the Executive
Management and the constitution of Board Committees comprising a majority of independent Non-
Executive Directors and chaired by an independent Director, to oversee all functional areas. We believe
that excellence emanates from good governance therefore, we have adopted high standard of
transparency and accountability, professionalism and social responsiveness with improved customer
focus to maintain a value driven organization.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Human Resource Management department continues to play a very important role in the ever-
changing competitive scenario. The Bank's mission continues to be to convert every employee of the
Bank into a knowledge worker to enable them to cope with increased customer expectations and new
areas of Banking outside the traditional zone, Mainly Bank of Baroda, India and the Uganda Institute of
Bankers conduct the training in addition to Conferences and workshops arganized by Bank of Uganda
{BOU) and Federation of Uganda Employers (FUE). Furthermore, the Bank has conducted a number of
in-house training programmes in the process of empowering our staff so as to match with our standard
operating procedures and any other changes affecting our Industry due to Globalization. The Bank has
also gone through a major recruitment exercise where -2- Directly Recruited Officer, -4- Directly
Recruited Supervisors and -25- Banking Assistants have been recruited. A promotion exercise was also
conducted and -5- staff were promoted from Supervisor to Officer Cadre, -B- Clerks (Banking
Assistants) to Supervisor and -1- Non- Clerical to Clerical Cadre,

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

With effect from 25 February 2008, the Bank has installed Banking Software (Finacle) which was
developed by Infosys Technologies Limited. All the branches and Alternative delivery channels of the
Bank are connected to Core Banking System. Bank has implemented transaction-based internet Banking
"Baroda Connect” in June 2010. The Bank also launched its website in June 2011 facilitating our
customers and public at large to have updated information about the Bank and its wvarious
Products/Services. The Bank has also implemented E-collection of Uganda Revenue Authority {URA)
Taxes and Mational Water & Sewerage Corporation (NWSE) water taxes from November 2011, Collection
of NS5F contributions from employers since August 2012 and collection of UMEME bills since July 2013,
SMS alert system for debit and credit transactions has also been implemented in year 2017. Information
and Communication Technology (ICT) audit by external auditor was conducted in year 2018, Automated
clearing house (ACH) for Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) and Cheque Clearing System (CTS)
implemented on 20 April 2019, VISA accreditation project for all our debit cards, ATMs and contackt
center was made live on 9 June 2018. Mobile Banking and Mobile Passbook lauriched on 9 June 2018,
Rapid funds to India through Alternate Delivery channels, agency banking, ASCROM in finacle and
website re-designing projects are expected to go live In year 2019, Continued focus on leveraging
technology has resulted in process efficiencies and enhances custamer convenience,
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte & Touche, Certified Public Accountants of Uganda were appointed as statutory auditors of the
Group and Bank in accordance with Section 167(1) of the Companies Act and were duly approved by

the Bank of Uganda in accordance with Section 62 of the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended
by the Financial Institutions (Amendment) Act 2017.

Deloitte & Touche, being eligible, has expressed willingness to continue in office in accordance with the
requirements of Section 167 (2) of the Uganda Companies Act, 2012,
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on)2 April, 2019.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

ANN TUMWESIGYE MBONYE
COMPANY SECRETARY

KAMPALA

2019
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Uganda Companies Act, 2012 requires the Directors to prepare consolidated and separate financial
statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Bank as at the end of the financial year and of the operating results of the Group and the Bank for that
year. It also requires the Directors to ensure the Group and the Bank keep proper accounting records,
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Bank. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Bank.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended by the Financial
Institutions (Amendment) Act 2017, International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Uganda Companies Act, 2012. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these consoclidated and
separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual consolidated and separate financial statements, which
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates, in conformity with Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions
(Amendment) Act 2017, International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the
Uganda Companies Act, 2012, The Directors are of the opinion that the consolidated and separate financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Group and the Bank and of
the Group's and Bank’ s operating results. The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance
of accounting records, which may be relied upon in the preparation of consolidated and separate financial
statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

The Directors certify that to the best of their knowledge, the information furnished to the auditors for the
purpose of the audit was correct and is an accurate representation of the Group's and Bank's financial
transactions.

Mothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Group and the Bank will not remain
a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement,

4 ,
Signed on Qf’ﬂl“&, 2019 on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

Mrs. Vastina Rukimirana Nsanze - Chairperson Mr. Ashwini &anaging Director

Mr. Manoj Kamar Bakshi - Executive Director
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- Deloitte & Touche
Certified Public Accountant of Uganda
Deloitte e
2 3rd Floor, Rwenzori House
1 Lumumba Averise
PO Box 10314

Kampala
Uganda

Tek +256(417) 701 000
+256 (414) 343 850
+256{312) 230 300

Eax: +256{414) 343 887
+256 (414) 259 355

Email; admin@delotte coug
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited
and its subsidiary (“the Group and the Bank"), as set out on pages 22 to 104. These consolidated and
separate financial statements ("the financial statements”) comprise the Statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Statements
of changes in eguity and Statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the financial affairs of the Group and Bank as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated and separated
financial performance and its consolidated and separated cash flows for the year then ended In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and requirements of the Uganda Companies Act,
2012 as well as the Financial Institutions Act 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions (Amendment)
Act, 2017.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Uganda. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified during the audit is as follows and it applies to the consclidated and separate
financial statements in the same manner.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

TO THE MEMBERS COF BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Impairment of loans

The directors consider the allowance for impairment of
loans advanced to customers a matter of most
significance, as it requires the application of significant
judgement and use of subjective assumptions. The group
records impairment for customers based on historic default
experience and forecasts this into the future using macro-
economic variables. The group also considers the collateral
values for loans that are secured and estimates the
expected recovery amounts and the time it takes to
recover debt from sale of securities. Further to that group
determines what Significant Increase in Credit Risk is
considering qualitative and quantitative factors,
Therefore, the Directors in assessing the impairment
allowance require significant judgement.
The significant judgements applied in determining the
impairment allowance include:
* the expected period of recovery in future expected
cash flows;
+ the determination of probability of default
+ Determination of Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Given the combination of inherent subjectivity in the
significant judgement areas mentioned above, and the
material nature of the impairment allowance balance; we
considered the above to be a key audit matters in our
audit of the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank reported gross loans
of 764,105 million and 6,916 million of expected credit
loss provisions. Refer to Note 13 of the accounts

How the matter was addressed in the

audit

a) Our procedures to assess the directors’
provision for specific allowances, In
response to the risks specific to the
individually assessed impairment included
the following:

We evaluated the processes for
identifying impairment indicators and
assessed compliance for classification of
loans in accordance with The Financial
Institutions (Credit Classification and
Provisioning) Regulations, 2005.

For a sample of selected non-
performing loans, we assessed the
Directors’ forecast of recoverable cash
flows, valuation of collaterals, estimates
of recovery on default and other
sources of repayment. We evaluated
the consistency of key assumptions
applied.

As IFRS © was adopted at the start of
the year, we performed audit
procedures on the opening balances to
gain assurance over the transition from
IAS 39, This included evaluating the
accounting interpretations for
compliance with IFRS 9 and testing the
day one adjustment and disclosures
made on transition.

We tested the design and
implementation, operating effectiveness
of key controls acrass the processes
relevant to the ECL. This included the
allocation of assets into stages, model
governance, data accuracy and
completeness, individual provisions and
production journal entries and
disclosures,

We performed an overall assessment of
the ECL provision levels by stage to
determine if they were reasonable
considering the bank’s portfolic, risk
profile, credit risk management
practices and the macro economic
environment.

We reviewed and challenged the criteria
used to allocate an asset to stage 1, 2
ar 3 in accordance with IFRS 9. We
tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 to
verify that they were allocated to the
appropriate stage.

With support from our internal
maodelling specialists, we tested the
assumptions, inputs and formulae used
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in a sample of ECL models. This
included assessing the appropriateness
of model design and formulae used,
considering alternative modelling
techniques and recalculating the ECL.

+ To verify data quality, we tested the
data used in the ECL calculation by
reconciling to source systems. To test
credit menitoring, we recalculated the
risk ratings for a sample of perfarming
loans.

=  With the support of our internal
modelling specialists, we assessed the
base case and alternative economic
scenarios, including challenging
probability weights and comparing to
other scenarios. We assessed whether
forecasted macroeconomic variables
were appropriate, such as GDP, interest
rates. With the support from our
internal modelling specialists, we
challenged the correlation and impact
of the macroeconomic factors to the
ECL including how non-linearity was
captured.

+  With support from our internal
specialists, we recalculated a sample of
individually assessed provisions
including comparing to alternative
scenarios and challenging probability
weights assigned.

* We assessed the adequacy and
appropriateness of disclosures for
compliance with the accounting
standards including disclosure of
transition from IAS 39.

Overall, the results of our evaluation of the
Bank's allowance for impairment of loans are
consistent with the directors’ assessment.,

We found the model and assumptions used in
the calculation of the specific allowances to be
in line with the IFRS, professional guidance and
market practice

We found that adequate disclosures had been
made by the directors pertaining to the
allowance for impairment of loans and
advances and the related credit risk.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the 'Corporate Governance statement’ and 'Report of the Directors’, which
we obtained before the date of our report. The other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for these Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements
that glve a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and
In the manner required by the Uganda Companies Act, 2012 and the Financial Institutions Act,
2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions (Amendment) Act, 2017 and for such internal contral
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of these consolidated and
separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's as well as Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's as well as Bank’s financial
reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (1SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant te the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group s and on the Bank's internal control.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
{Continued)

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's as well as Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and/or Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, Including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
mattars that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public Interest benefits of such communication.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requiremeants
As required by the Uganda Companies Act, 2012, we report to you based on our audit, that:

il We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of the audit;

il In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Group and Bank, so far as appears
from our examination of those books; and

i) The Group's as well as Bank’ s statement of financial position {Balance sheet) and statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (profit or loss) are in agreement with the books of
account.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is
MNorbert Kagoro, Practicing Number PO053.

Tleloifie £ fuwetia .

Certified Public Accountant of Uganda Norbert Kann
Partner
24 AV 2019
Kampala
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MNotes

Interest income
Interest expense

m

Net interest income
Mon-interest income
Mon-interest expenses

o0 =)

Profit before impairment on
loans and advances

Impairment gains/ (losses) on loans
and advances 13 b
Profit before tax

Income tax charge 10

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Net (loss) in FVWTOCI
financial assets (net of taxes) 12

Net gain in AFS assets(net of taxes) 12

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year attributable to:

« Equity holders of the Bank

2018
Shs'000

158,741,498
(49,239,650)

Consolidated
2017
Shs'000

148,197,743
(58,534,856)

2018
Shs'000

158,741,493
(49,269,780)

Separate
2017
Shs'000

148,197,743
(58,565,874)

109,501,848 89,662,887 109,471,718 89,631,869
37,225,555 25,836,286 37,078,743 25,712,732
(54,988,975) (52,444,614) (54,900,618) (52,345,553)
91,738,428 63,054,559 91,649,843 62,999,048
950,170 1,102,665 950,170 1,102,665
92,688,598 64,157,224 92,600,013 64,101,713

{19,205,138)

(14,751,601)

(19,179,188)

(14,735,395)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

«  Equity holders of the Bank

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted (Shs per share) 32

73,483,460 49,405,623 73,420,825 49,366,318
(18,955,486) (18,946,539)

11,203,207 11,201,051

(18,955,486) 11,203,207 (18,946,539) 11,201,051

54,527,974 60,608,830 54,474,286 60,567,369
73,483,460 49,405,623
54,527,974 60,608,830
29.39 19.76

The notes on pages 27 to 104 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial

statements.



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated
2017
Shs'000

206,150,443
500,406,256
163,895,210

19,835,816

4,909,112
3,476,050
1,385,752

616,574,425

14,245
19,021,439

2018
Shs'000

164,262,009
508,317,338
133,043,187

36,850,895

80,784,757
3,241,524
8,491,215

757,188,839

40,000
3,420,987
121,845
18,090,204

Separate
2017
Shs'000

206,150,443
500,406,256
163,855,210

19,835,816

4,869,788
3,296,633
1,356,493
616,574,425
40,000

14,245
19,019,401

1,535,672,748

1,713,852,800

1,535,462,710

2018

Notes Shs'000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda 11 164,394,812
Government securities 12a 508,317,338
Loans and advances to Banks 12b 133,043,187
Amounts due from overseas branches
of parent company 14 36,850,895
Deposits and balances due from other
financial institutions 22 80,784,756
Other assets 15 3,476,544
Current tax receivable 10b 8,512,282
Loans and advances to customers {net) 13 757,188,839
Investment in subsidiary 16 =
Deferred income tax assets 17 3,425,511
Intangible assets 18 121,845
Property and equipment 19 18,091,963
Total assets 1,714,207,972
LIABILITIES
Other financial liabilities 20 11,188,328
Customer deposits 21 1,301,810,777
Deferred income tax liabilities 17 -
Other liabilities 23 25,058,782
Retirement benefit obligation 24 1,413,064

19,248,876
1,166,245,602
2,281,634
16,016,622
1,415,443

11,188,328

1,302,169,378

24,935 844
1,413,064

19,248,876
1,166,686,542
2,282,293
15,888,971
1,415,443

Total liabilities 1,335,470,951

1,205,208,177

1,339,706,614

1,205,522,125

CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS

Share capital 25 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Reserves 25,962,840 39,615,570 25,969,631
Proposed dividend 28 25,000,000 18,750,000 25,000,000
Retained earnings 298,774,181 247,099,001 298,176,555
Total shareholders’ equity 374,737,021 330,464,571 374,146,186

25,000,000
39,613,414
18,750,000
246,577,171

329,940,585

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

The financial statements on pages 22 to 104 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on..

2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Aahwml I-C
Managmg

Mrs \astina Rukimirana Nsanze

Chairman ctor

1,714,207,972 1,535,672,748 1,713,852,800

/

1,535,462,710

7 AL

Mr. ManofRumar Bakshi
Executive Director

The notes on pages 27 to 104 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December
2017 Motas
At start of yvear

Changes in equity:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

{net of taxes)

Transfer to FVTOCT reserve

Deferred tax charged on FYTOCT gains
Transfer from regulatory

reserves 26
Transfer from revaluation

reserve

Transfer of excess

depreciation on revaluation

net of deferred tax 27

Dividends paid
Dividends proposed 28

At 31 December 2017

Day one IFRS 9 transition
Subsidiary restatement 35
At 1 January 2018

Changes in eguity:

Prafit for the year

Other comprehensive income

{net of taxes)

Transfer to regulatory

reserves 26
Transfer from revaluatian

reserve

Transfer of excess

depreciation an revaluation

net of deferred {ax 27
Dividends paid
Dividerds proposed 28

At 31 December 2018

| | ] | ] | 1 | | | | [ 1
Regulatory Available
Ordinary general for sale
Share credit Revaluation reserve FVTOCI Proposed Retained
capital reserve reserve Reserve dividend earnings Total
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Sha'iDg Shs'000 Shs'D00 Shs'000 Shs'D0O
25,000,000 21,505,874 10,158,866 2,213 8B1 6,250,000 212,354,048 277,486,668
= . £ 2 . 49,405,623 49,405,623
2 i : 11,203,207 & - 11,203,207
. - 6,026 - (6,926) £
(1,598,618} {1,598,618)
= (3,370,623) - - - 3,370,623

- - (725,633} - - 725,633 -
- - 217,690 = & - 217,680
25,000,000 18,139,251 9,650,923 11,825,356 6,250,000 265,849,001 336,714,571
£ : i _ (6,250,000) - {6,250,000)
- - - - 18,750,000 (18,750,000} -
ZEEMIHD 18i13!:251 EIESGEQIE IIEBESIEDE 18,750,000 247,099,001 330l464:5'}‘1
- - - (11,B825.396) 11,825,396 - 8,274,510 B,274,510
13,161 13,161
25,000,000 18,139,251 9,650,923 = 11,825,396 18,750,000 255,386,672 338,752,242
> & _ - - 73,483,480 73,483 460
- - - [18,955,486) . = [1B,955,486)
- 5,785,302 = - - (5,785,302} -
- - (689, 351) - 689,351 -
- ~ 206,805 - - - 206,805
25,000,000 23,924 553 0,168,377 {7,130,090) 18,750,000 323,774,181 393 487,021
z g = a {18,750,000) 2 [18,750,000)
- - - - 25,000,000 {25,000,000%) -
35,000,000 23,924,553 5.168,377 (7,130,080} 25,000,000 208,774,181 374,737,021

The notes an pages 27 to 104 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

24



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Regulatory Fair value
Ordinary General Revaluatio assets
Share Credit n available- FVTOCI Proposed Retained
capital reserve reserve for-sale Reserve dividend earnings Total
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs"000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Year ended 31 December No
At start of yvear 25,000,000 21,509 874 10,158,866 2,213,881 6.250,000 211,871,523 277,004,144
Changes in equity:
Profit for the year - - - - = 40 366,318 49,366,318
Other comprehensive
income (et of lexes) - - & 11,201,051 - - 11,201,051
Transfer to FVTOCI reserves 26 = = = 6,926 - (6,926) -
Deferrad tax charged on FYTOCI (1,598,618)
gains - - - = - {1,598,618)
Transfer to regulatory
FESErves 27 = {3,370,623) = = - 3,370,623 -
Transfer from revaluation
FESETVE - . (725,633) - - 725,633 -
Transfer from Investment
fluctuation reserves - ™ 217,650 - - - 217,690
25.000.000 18.139.251 9.650.923 11.823.24 6.250.000 265.327.17 336.190.58
Dividends paid 5 - - - (6,250,000} - (6,250,000}
Dividends proposed 28 = = = = 18,750,000 (18,750,000 -
At 31 December 2017 _25000,000  _18,139.251 _ 9,650,923 _11.823.24 _18.750.000 _246,577.17 329,940,568
Cay one IFRS 9 transition
adjustment = - = - - 8,274,510 8,274,510
At 1 January 2018 25,000,000 18,139,251 9,650,923 11,823,240 18,750,000 254,851,68 338,215,09
Chanages in equity:
Profit for the vear = = = - - 73,420,825 73,420,825
Other comprehensive
Income (net of taxes) 3 = - {18,946, 539) - = {18,946 ,539)
Transfer to requlatory 26 - 5,785.302 - = - {5.785.302) -
Transfer from revaluation = = {689,351} - = 689,351 -
Transfer of excess
depreciation on revaluation
net of deferred tax 237 = = 206,805 - - - 206,805
25.000.000 23,924,553 9.168.377 {7.123.299 18.750.000 323.176.55 392,896.18
Dividends paid = = = - (18,750,000 - (18,750,000)
Dividends proposed 28 = = = = 23,000,000 _{25,000,0001 =
At 31 December 2018 _25.000,000  _23.924,553 __ 9,168,377 (7,123.299  _25.000,000 _298,176,55 _ 374,146,18

The notes on pages 27 to 104 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements,
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts 158,772,276 135,556,495 158,629,778 135,435,529
Interest payments (47,628,554) (67,481 ,243) (47,628,554} (67,481,243)
Fee and commission receipts 13,937,740 14,592,074 13,937,740 14,592,074
Realised foreign exchange gain an trading book 3,574,196 2,522,796 3,574,194 2,522,796
Profit on sale of investments 2,293,403 2,307,361 2,293,403 2,307,361
Other income 2,015,262 35,809 1,980,819 2,203
Recoveries on loans previously written off 15,292,586 6,288,298 15,292,586 6,288,298
Payments to employees and suppliers (28,600,558) (46,808,534) (28,519,165) {46,711,041)
Income tax paid 10b (23,710,441} [14,546,811) (23 690,441 (14,926,811)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 95,945,510 32,066,245 95,870,362 32,029,166
Loans and advances to Customers (124,991,182) (31,307,127 {124,991,182) (31,307,127)
Cash reserve requirement 5,808,000 261,000 9,808,000 261,000
Loans and advances to Banks {76,717 ,078) 149,680,379) (76,717,078) {49,680,379)
Government securities 10,852,146 (62,855,715) 10,852,146 (62,855,715)
Other assets 33,445 (82,036) 55,109 (73,392)
Customer depasits 135,408,071 3,422,005 135,482 836 3,621,178
Other liabilities 2,760,303 (10,754,504 2645942 (10,815,595)
Gther financlal kabilitles (8,060,548) 11,304,636 (8,060,548} 11,304 636
Met cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (50,906,843} (138 692,120 (50,924,775} {139, 545 394)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment 13 (469,306) (1,158,177} (469,306} {1,156,177)
Cash paid for purchase of intangible assets 18 {159,660} [4,765) {15%,660) {4, 765)
Met cash used in investing activities (628,966 (1,1560,942) (628, 966) {1,160,942)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid {18,750,000) (6,250,000 (18,750,000) (6,250,000
MNet cash used in financing activities (18,750,000} [6,250,000) (18,750,000 [€,250,000]
increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,660,101 (115,036,816) 25,566,621 (114,527,170
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yvear 486,395,920 588,905,540 485,356,597 QB 760,971
increase/[Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,660,102 {115,036,B16) 25,566,621 [114,927,170)
Effacts of exchange rate changes on the balances held in
foreign currencies 3,574,157 2,522,796 3,574,197 2,522 796
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30 515,630,218 486,395,920 515‘49?‘415 45535@597

The notes on pages 27 to 104 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited (the Bank) is incorporated in Uganda under the Companies Act
as a limited liability company. Its parent and ultimate holding company Is Bank of Baroda {India)
headquartered in Mumbai. The Bank is domiciled in Uganda principally engaged in the provision
commercial Banking services and provision of related services. The address of its registered office
I5:

Plot 18, Kampala Road
P O Box 7197
Kampala, Uganda

The Bank's shares are listed on the Uganda Securities Exchange (USE) and is licensed under the
Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions Amendment Act, 2017,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles adopted in the preparation of these consolidated and separate
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated.,

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Act of Uganda, 2012 and Financial Institutions Act, {2004) as
amended by the Financial Institutions (Amendment) Act, 2016. The financial statements were
authorised for Issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019,

For purposes of reporting under the Uganda Companies Act, 2012, the balance sheet in thesa
financial statements is represented by the Statement of financial position and the profit or loss
account is represented by the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Bank presents the Statement of financial position showing assets and liabilities in their broad
order of liquidity, because this presentation provides reliable and maore relevant information than
separate current and non-current classifications.

(a) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical
cost basis except for the following:

» Financial instruments measured at fair value through Profit or loss are measured at falr
value

+ Finmancial instruments measured through other comprehensive income with changes in fair
value through statement of other comprehensive income

{b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Uganda shillings, which is the Bank's functional

currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED}

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation(continued)

(c) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies, business models and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Assumptions and estimates of uncertainties

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results ultimately may differ from these
estimates.

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Bank regularly reviews its assets and makes judgements (n determining whether an impairment
loss should be recognised in respect of observable data that may impact on future estimated cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Infarmation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test (please see financial assets sections of note 1), The Bank determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured,
the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Bank monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or falr value through other comprehensive Income that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent
with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Bank's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are
held continues to be appropriate and If it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase of credit

Expected credit losses (ECL) are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase In credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly Increased the Bank takes into account qualitative and guantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

Establishing groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics

When ECLs are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of shared risk characteristics. The Bank monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk
characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess whether they continue to be similar. This s required
in order to ensure that should credit risk characteristics change there is appropriate re-
segmentation of the assets, This may result in new portfolios being created or assets moving to an
existing portfolio that better reflects the similar credit risk characteristics of that group of assets.
The Bank currently has no financial assets that are impaired on a collective basis.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation({continued)

{c)Use of estimates and judgement{continued)
Models and assumptions used:

The Bank uses various models and assumptions in measuring fair value of financial assets as well
as in estimating expected credit losses. Judgement is applied in identifying the most appropriate
model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the assumptions used in these models,
including assumptions that relate to key drivers of credit risk.

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and determining the forward locking information relevant to each scenario: When
measuring ECL the Bank uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is
based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers
will affect each other.

Probability of default (PD): FD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD Is an estimate of
the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data,
assumptions and expectations of future conditions. (Refer to classification of financial assets for a
detailed explanation of the drivers and inputs into the PD computations)

Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD is an estimate of the loss arlsing on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. (Refer to
classification of financial assets for a detailed explanation of the drivers and inputs into the LGD
computations)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and madel inputs related to items such
as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility,
For further details about determination of fair value please see Note 36.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The Bank operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved In various litigation arising in
the ordinary course of the Bank's business; When the Bank can reliably measure the outflow of
economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the
Bank records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be
remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.
However, when the Bank is of the opinion that disclosing these estimates on a case-by-case basis
would prejudice their outcome, then the Bank does not include detailed, case-specific disclosures
in its financial statements.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Bank takes inte account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents, Significant judaement is required to conclude on these
estimates. For further details on provisions and contingencies see Notes 23.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation(continued)

(c)Use of estimates and judgement(continued)

Impairment losses for loans and advances

On 1 January 2018, the Bank adopted International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. IFRS 9 replaces 1AS 39 financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
introduces a new reguirement for the classification and measurement of financlal instruments, the
recognition and measurement of credit impairment provisions; and provides a simplified approach
to hedge accounting. Due to the transition method chosen in applying IFRS 9, comparative
information has not been restated to reflect the new requirements.

IFRS 9 Introduces an expected credit losses model as opposed to incurred credit losses under TAS
39, Under the impairment approach in IFRS 9, it Is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of the expected credit losses should
be updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition,

Expected credit losses are determined for all financial debt instruments that are classified as
amaortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, undrawn commitments or
financial guarantees. An expected credit loss represents the present wvalue of expected cash
shortfalls over the residual term of a financial asset, undrawn commitments or financial guarantee,
A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due in accordance with the
contractual terms of the instruments and the cash flows that the Bank expects to recelve over the
contractual life of the instrument.

Measurement of Expected Credit Loss

Expected credit |losses are computed as unbiased, probability weighted amounts which are
determined by evaluating a range of reasonably possible outcomes, the time value of money and
considering all reasonable and supportive information including that which is forward looking,

The estimate of expected cash shortfalls is determined by multiplying the probability of default {(PD)
with the loss given default (LGD) with the expected exposure at the time of default (EAD). There
may be multiple default events over the lifetime of the instrument.

Forward looking economic assumptions are incorporated into PD, LGD and EAD where relevant and
where they have an effect on the credit risk, such as GDP growth rates, interest rates, inflationary
rates among others, Where credit losses are linear In nature, these assumptions are incorporated
using the most likely forecast for the range of macroeconomic assumptions. The forecasts are
determined using all reasonable and supportable information, which include both internally
developed forecasts and those available externally and are consistent with those used for budgeting
and forecasting.

The period over which cash shortfalls are determined is generally limited to the maximum
contractual period for which the Bank is exposed to credit risk. However, for certain revolving credit
facilities like overdrafts; the Bank's exposure to credit risk is not limited to the contractual period.
For these instruments, the Bank estimates an appropriate life based on the period the Bank Is
exposed to credit risks which include the effect of credit risk management actions such as
withdrawal of undrawn facilities.

For credit-impaired financial instruments, the estimate of future cash shortfalls may require the use
of expert credit judgement, As a practical expedient, the Bank may also measure credit impalrment
on the basis of the instrument fair value using observable market prices,

The estimate of expected cash shortfalls on a collateralised financial instrument reflects the amount
of timing of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure on the collateral less costs of obtaining
and selling the collateral, regardless of whether foreclosure is deemed probable. Cash flows from
unfunded credit enhancements held are included within the measurement of expected credit losses
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation(continued)

(c)Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

Cash shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate on the financial instruments as
calculated at initial recognition or if the instrument has variable interest rate, the current effective
interest rate under the contract,

Expected credit loss allowances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows;

Financial Instruments Location of expected credit loss allowances

* Financial instruments held at = Loss allowances netted against gross carrying value
amortised cost

* Financial assets held FYOCI- Debt « Other comprehensive income (FYOCI ECL Reserve)

instruments
s Loan commitments « Other liabilities
* Financial Guarantees ¢ DOther liahilities

Bonds and treasury securities classifled as FVOCI are held at fair value on the face of the balance
sheet, The ECL attributed to these instruments is held as a separate reserve within OCI and Is
recycled to the profit or loss account along with any fair value measurement gains or losses held
within FVOCI when the applicable instrument is derecognized.

ECL on loan commitments and financial guarantees (s recognized as a liability provision. Where a
financial instrument includes both a loan (.2, financial asset component) and undrawn commitment
{i.e. loan commitment component) and it's not possible to separately identify ECL on these
components. ECL amounts an loan commitments are recognized together with ECL amounts on the
financial asset.

Ugandan Financial Institutions Act, 2004 requirements as amended by the FIA Act, 2016

In addition to the measurement of impairment losses on loans and advances in accordance with
International Financlal Reporting Standards as set out above, the Bank is also reguired by the
Ugandan Financial Institutions Act 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions {Amendment) Act,
2016, to estimate losses on loans and advances as follows:

I} A specific provision for those loans and advances considered to be non-performing based on
criteria and classification of such loans and advances established by the Financial Institutions
Act 2004, as amended by the Financial Institutions {Amendment) Act, 2016, as follows:

a) Substandard assets with arrears period between 90 days and 179 days - 20%
b) Doubtful assets with arrears period between 180 days and 364 days - 50%
c) Loss assets with arrears period over one year or more — 100%

Loans classified as "loss” are written off within 90 days, unless approval is obtained from Bank
of Uganda not to write-off,

In addition to the arrears period, the Bank must follow subjective criteria in arriving at the
classification attributed to the assets.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation(continued)

{c)Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

i) A general provision of at least 1% of total outstanding credit facilities net of specific provisions
and Interest in suspense,

Where provisions for Impairment of loans and advances in accordance with the Ugandan
Financial Institutions Act 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions {Amendment) Act, 2016
exceed amounts determined in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
the excess is taken to the regulatory general credit risk reserve as an appropriation of retained
earnings. Where a loan has been classified as "loss” and is due for write-off in accordance with
the Uganda Financial Institutions Act 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions
(Amendment) Act, 2016, but there is objective evidence that the Bank has not lost its right to
this asset and the cash flows thereon, and as such the de-recognition criteria under the
International Financial Reporting Standards and policy note (f) (iv) have not been met, the
outstanding amount net of any impairment provision made in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards is taken to the regulatory general credit risk reserve as an
appropriation of retained earnings. Otherwise no further accounting entries are made,

Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there Is no observable
market price requires the use of wvaluation techniques. For financial instruments that trade
infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

{e) Revenue recognition
(i) Interest income and expense

Interest income for financial assets held at either fair value through other comprehensive
income or amaortised cost, and interest expense on all financial liabilities held at amortised
cost is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The Bank earns
interest income primarily through two activities - lending to customers and investing in
debt securities — and incurs interest expense through accepting custormer deposits and
Issuing debt securities or subordinated debt. Lending to customers to earn interest income
Is one of the Banks' main business activities

The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability
(or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability.

The effective interest method is the method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and allocating the interest income and interest expense over
the expected life of the instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate for financial
Instruments other than credit impaired assets, the bank estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example prepayments, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider expected credit losses.

The caleulation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points
paid or received that are an integral part of the effective Interest rate. Transaction costs
Include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a
financial asset or financial liability.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ({CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Basis of preparation(continued)

(f) Revenue recognition{continued)
(i) Interest income and expense(continued)

Interest income for financial assets that are either held at fair value through other
comprehensive Income or amortised costs are either purchased or originated credit
impaired financial assets (POCI) or assets that have become credit impaired subsequent to
Initial recognition and have the amounts written off, is recognised using credit adjusted
effective interest rate. The rate is calculated in the same manner as the effective interest
rate except that expected credit losses are included in the expected cash flows. Should the
credit risk on a stage 3 financial asset improve such that the financial asset is no longer
considered credit impaired, interest income recognition reverts back to a computation
based on a rehabilitated gross carrying value of a financial asset,

The Bank recognises interest income on stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets by applying
the effective interest rate on the gross outstanding balance while for stage 3 financial
assets, The Bank applies credit adjusted effective interest rate on recoverable amount after
adjusting for the specific provisions on the impaired asset.

Interest income and expense presented in profit or loss include:

+ interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated
an an effective interest basis;

= interest on Fair value through other comprehensive income and Fair value through profit
ar loss investment securities calculated on an effective interest basis;

Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the hank's trading operations and are presented together with all other
changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income,

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and requirements of the Uganda Companies Act, 2012 as well as the Financial
Institutions Act, 2004 as amended by the Financial Institutions {Amendment) Act 2017. The
measurement basis applied is the historical cost basls, except where otherwise stated in the
accounting policies below. The financial statements are presented in Uganda Shillings (Shs),
rounded off to the nearest thousand.

For purposes of reporting under the Uganda Companies Act, 2012, the balance sheet in these
financial statements |s represented by the consolidated and separate statement of financial
position and the profit and loss account s represented by the consolidated and separate
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incame.

The Group presents the consolidated statement of financial position showing assets and liabilities
in their broad order of liquidity, because this presentation provides reliable and miore relevant
information than separate current and non-current classifications.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, It alse requires the Board of Directors to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Mote 3.

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention, except as indicated otherwise below and are in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

The following amendments to IFRSs became mandatorily effective in the current year. The
amendments generally require full retrospective application {i.e. comparative amounts have to be
restated), with some amendments requiring prospective application.

« [FRS 9 Financial Instruments
« [IFRS 15 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
« Amendments to IFRS 12 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
retrospective application permitted if, and only If, it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
bank took advantage of the exemption allowing it not to restate comparative information for prior
perlods with respect to classification and measurement including impairment changes. Differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabllities resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 have been recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018,

IFRS 9 introduced a principles-based approach to the classification of financial assets. There are
three measurement classifications under IFRS 9: amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL) and, for financial assets, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) based on
the nature of the cash flows of the assets and an entity’'s business model. These categories replaced
1AS 39 classifications of FVTPL, available for sale (AFS), loans and receivables, and held-to-
maturity. Equity instruments are measured at FVTPL, unless they are not held for trading purposes,
in which case an irrevocable election can be made on initial recognition to measure them at FVOCI
with no subsequent reclassification to profit or loss.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs)(continued)

The table below sets out the impact of adopting Internatienal Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS
9) on the financial position of the Bank:

EQUITY

Classification
and
IAS 39 measurement ECL
ASSETS Mote (Shs'000) (Shs'000) (Shs'000) IFRS 9 (Shs'000)
Cash and balances with 11 -
BOU 206,150,443 = 206,150,443
Government securities 12a 500,406,256 _ 500,406,256
Loans and advances to 13b -
Banks 163,899 210 = 163,899,210
Amounts due from -
overseas branches of 14
parent company 19,835,816 - 19 835 816
financial institutions 22 4,869,788 3 4,869,788
Other assets 15 3,296,633 - 3,296,633
Current tax receivable 10b 1,356,493 . 1,356,493
Loans and advances to 13 =
customers {net) 616,574,425 13,413,750 629 988,175
Investment in 16 =
subsidiary 40,000 - 40,000
Intangible assets 18 14 245 _ 14,245
Property and 19 =
equipment 19,019,401 = 19,019 401
Total assets 1,535,462,710 - 1,548,876,460
LIABILITIES
Other financial E
liabilities 20 e ) ’ 19,248,876
Customer deposits 21 1,166,686,542 - 1,166,686,542
Deferred income tax -
liabilities i7 2,282,293 _ 2,282,293 |
Other liahilities 23 15,888,971 - 5,139,240 21,028,211
Retirement henefit -
obligation 24 1,415,443 - 1,415 443
Total liabilities 1,205,522,125 . _ 1,210,661,365
Share capital 38 25,000,000 & 25,000,000
Reserves 39,613,414 . 39,613,414
Proposed dividend 28 18,750,000 = : SRR
Retained earnings 246,577,171 - 8,274,510 254 851,681
 Total shareholders” -
338,215,095
eqiilty 329,940,585 s ¥ ¥
| TOTAL LIABILITIES -
AND
SHAREMOLDER-S 1,535,462,710 ' 1,548,876,460
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs){continued)

The table below sets out the impact of adopting International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS
9) on the financial position of the Group:

Classification

and
IAS 39 measurement ECL IFRS 9
ASSETS MNote (Shs'000) (Shs'000) (Shs'000) | (Shs'000)
Cash and balances with BOU 11 206,150,443 N : 206,150,443
Government securities 128 500,406,256 - - 500,406,256
Loans and advances to Banks 12b 163,899,210 - - 163,899 210
Amounts due from overseas =
branches of parent company 14 19,835,816 - 13:833,616
financial institutions 22 4,909,112 = = 4,909,112
Other assets 15 3,476,050 2 - 3,476,050
Current tax receivable 10b | 1,385,752 - - 1,385,752
Loans and advances to -
customers I:I'IEt} 13 616,574,425 13,413,750 629,888,175
Investment in subsidiary 16 =) n 5 #
Intangible assets 18 14,245 - - 14,245
Property and equipment 19 19,021,439 - - 19,021,439
Total assets 1,535,672,748 - 1,549,086,498
LIABILITIES
Other financial liabilities 20 19,248 B76 = 2 19,248 B76
Customer deposits 21 1,166,245,602 - - 1,166,245,602
Deferred income tax liabilities 17 2,281,634 - - 2,281 634
Other liabilities 23 16,016,622 = 5,139,240 21,155 862
Retirement benefit obligation 24 1,415,443 - - 1,415,443 |
Total liabilities 1,205,208,177 B - 1,210,347,417
' Share capital 25 25,000,000 m - 25,000,000
Reserves 39,615,570 E - 39,615,570
Proposed dividend 28 18,750,000 = - 18,750,000
Retained earnings 247 099,001 - B,274.510 255,373,511
Total shareholders™ equity 330,464,571 = - 338,739,081
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND I
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 1,535,672,748 = -| 1,549,086,498
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Bank has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended in April 2016) which is effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January
2018. IFRS 15 introduced a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. The standard has not had a significant
impact on the financial statements.

The Bank has applied IFRS 15 in accordance with the fully retrospective transitional approach
without using the practical expedients for completed contracts in IFRS 15:C5(a), and (b), or for
modified contracts in IFRS 15:C5(c) but using the expedient in IFRS 15:C5(d) allowing both
non-disclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations, and an explanation of when it expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all
reporting pericds presented before the date of initial application, i.e. 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract liability’ to describe what might more
commonly be known as ‘accrued revenue’ and ‘deferred revenue’, however the Standard does not
prohibit an entity from using alternative descriptions in the statement of financial position. The Bank
has adopted the terminclegy used in IFRS 15 to describe such balances,

The standard has not had any material changes to the recognition of revenue of the bank's services
customers, The bank recognises revenue when control of the services underlying a particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer,

Amendments to IFRS 12 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarified the following:

+ Inestimating the fair value of cash-settled share-based payments, the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow the same approach as for equity-settled
share-based payments.

* Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to withhold a specified number of equity
instruments equal to monetary value of the employee’s tax obligation to meet the employee’s
tax liability which Is then remitted to the tax authority (typically in cash), l.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a "net settiement feature’, such an arrangement should be classified
as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not been included the net settlement feature,

» A modification of a share-based payment that changes the transaction from cash-settled to
equity should be accounted for as follows:
= the original liability is derecognised;

o the equity-settled share-based payment is recognised at the modification date fair value of
the equity instrument granted to the extent that services have been rendered up to the
madification date; and

o any difference between the carrying amount of the liability at the modification date and the
amount recognised In equity should be recognised in profit or loss immediately.

o The amendments have not had an impact to the financial statements of the Bank.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs){continued)

Section 1B: New and revised IFRSs that are not mandatorily effective (but allow early
application) for the year ended 31 December 2018

Below Is a list of new and revised IFRSs that are not yet mandatorily effective (but allow for early
application) for the year ended 31 December 2018*

IFRS 16Leases

IFRS 17Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to  IFRS 3

Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,

Amendments to [AS 19 Employes Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtallment or Settlement

« IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and [AS 28 (amendments) Sale or
contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

+ [FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

- & B & &

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods, except as noted below:

IFRS 16 Leases
General impact of application of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their
treatment In the financial statements for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede the
current lease guidance including IAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The date of initial application
of IFRS 16 for the Group will be 1 January 2019.

The Bank has chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 in accordance with IFRS 16:C5
(a). Conseguently, the Group will restate the comparative information. In contrast to lessee
accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessors accounting requirements in IAS 17,

Identification of a lease

IFRS applies a control model to the identification of leases, distinguishing between leases and
service contracts on the basis of whether there is an identified asset controlled by the customer.
Control is considered to exist If the customer has:

+ the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of an identified asset;
and
* the right to direct the use of that asset.

The Standard provides detailed guidance to determine whether those conditions are met, including
instances where the supplier has substantive substitution rights, and where the relevant decisions
about how and for what purpose the asset is used are predetermined.

Lessee accounting

IFRS 16 introduces significant changes to lessee accounting: It removes the distinction between
operating and finance leases under IAS 17 and requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at cormmencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets,

The right-of-use assets is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that are not pald at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and the lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modification, amongst others.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs){continued)

If a lessee elects not to apply the general requirements of IFRS 16 to short-term leases (i.e. one
that does not include a purchase option and has a lease term at commencement date of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets, the lessee should recognise the lease payments associated
with those |eases as an expense on either a straight-line basis aver the lease term or anaother
systematic basis, similar to the current accounting for operating leases.

Lessor accounting
In contrast to lessee accounting, the IFRS 16 lessor accounting requirements remain largely

unchanged from IAS 17, which continue to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

IFRS 16 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early application
permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16, A
lessee can apply IFRS 16 either by a full retrospective approach or a modified retrospective
approach. If the |atter approach is selected, an entity is not required to restate the comparative
information and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 must be presented as an
adjustment to opening retained earnings (or other component of equity as appropriate),

The impact of the new standard is being assessed by the Bank. However it is expected that office
space leases for may qualify to be capitalised on the statement of financial position.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The new Standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, The Standard outlines
a General Model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation features,
described as the Variable Fee Approach. The General Model is simplified If certain criterla are met
by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The General Model will use current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows and it will explicitly measure the cost of that uncertainty, it takes into account
market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees. The Standard is
effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with early application
permitted. It is applied retrospectively unless Impracticable, in which case the modified
retrospective approach or the fair value approach is applied.

The implementation of the Standard is not likely to have a material impact to the Bank's operations.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature
meets the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words,
prepayment features with negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPI,

The amendment applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier
application permitted. There are specific transition provisions depending on when the amendments
are first applied, relative to the initial application of IFRS 9. The directors of the Bank do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 3
Business Combinations The Annual Improvements include amendments to four Standards.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the Income tax consequences of dividends
in profit or loss, other comprehensive Income or equity according to where the entity orlginally
recognised the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective of
whether different tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains cutstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

IFRS 2 Business Combinations

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, the entity applies the requirements for a business combination achieved In stages,
including re-measuring its previously held interest (PHI) in the joint operation at fair value, The PHI
to be re-measured includes any unrecognised assets, llabllities and goodwill relating to the joint
operation.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when a party that participates In, but does not have joint
control of, a joint operation that is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the
entity does not re-measure its PHI in the joint operation.

All the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and
generally require prospective application. Earlier application is permitted. The Bank does not

anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an Impact on the Bank's
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost {or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated
by measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits
offered and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtallment or settlement) but
ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus
position). IAS 19 is now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from
the plan amendment (or curtallment or settlement) is determined in a second step and is recognised
in the normal manner in other comprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) have also been amended. An entity will now be required to use the
updated assumptions fraom this re-measurement to determine current service cost and net Interest
for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest,
the amendments make it clear that for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is
calculated by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) as re-measured under IAS 19.99
with the discount rate used In the re-measurement (also taking into account the effect of
contributions and benefit payments on the net defined benefit liabllity {asset)).

The amendments are applied prospectively. They apply only to plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements that occur on or after the beginning of the annual period in which the amendments to
IAS 19 are first applied. The amendments te IAS 19 must be applied to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019, but they can be applied earlier if an entity elects to do so. The Bank
does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
Bank's financial statements.

IFRS 10 Conscolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture specifically, the amendments state
that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture, Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement of
investments retalined in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.
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2.2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs}

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application
of the amendments [s permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these amendments may have an impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise. The Bank does not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the Bank's financial statements

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9, including its impairment requirements, applies to long-term
interests. Furthermore, in applying IFRS 9 to long-term interests, an entity does not take into
account adjustments to their carrying amount required by IAS 2B (i.e., adjustments to the carrying
amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or assessment of
impairment in accordance with IAS 28).

The amendments apply retrospectively to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019,

Earlier application is permitted. Specific transition provisions apply depending on whether the
first-time application of the amendments coincides with that of IFRS 9.

The Bank does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised within ‘interest income’ or ‘interest
expense’ in the Statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period, The effective interest rate |s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or recelpts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation includes
all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
Interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts,

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of
an Impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest that was used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.3aBasis of Consolidation

The consclidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Bank of Baroda
{Uganda) Limited and its subsidiary, Baroda Capital Markets Uganda Limited, made up to 31
December 2018, Control is achieved when the Bank:

s« has power over the investee;
* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its invaolvernent with the investee; and
=« has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee If facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consclidated and separate statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Bank gains control until the
date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Z.3aBasis of Consolidation {continued)

Profit or loss and each compenent of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Bank and to the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
nan-controlling interests having a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their
acceunting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.4bInvestment in Subsidiary

Investments in the subsidiaries (details of which are disclosed in Note 16) are stated in the Separate
statement of financial position at cost less provision for impairment loss where applicable. Where,
in the opinion of the Directors, there has been impairment in the value of an Investment, the loss
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to profit or loss.

2.5 Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated and separate financial staterments of the Group and Bank
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency'). These financial statements are presented |n Ugandan
Shillings (Shs), which is the Group's presentation currency and figures are stated in
thousands of Shillings (Shs’ 000) unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at
the reporting date. If several exchange rates are available, the forward rate is used at which
the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have been settled if
those cash flows had occurred. Non-maonetary (tems measured at historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of Initial
recognition; Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at fair value are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are recognized in profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analyzed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognized in profit or loss,
and other changes In the carrying amount, are recognized in other comprehensive income

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss, Translation
differences on non-monetary financial instruments, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets, are included In other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Fees and commission income and expense

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a
financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Loan
commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related
direct costs) and recognised over the life of the loan.

2.7 Sale and repurchase agreaments

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements ("repos’) are reclassified in the consolidated
and separate financial statements as pledged assets when the transferee has the right by
contract er custom to sell or re-pledge the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in
deposits from Banks or deposits from customers, as appropriate. Securitles purchased under
agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded as loans and advances to other Banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as
interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.
Securities lent to counterparties are also retained In the financial statements.

2.8 Financial assets and liabilities

(i

(i)

Recognition

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise
and a financial liability of another enterprise. Financial instruments held by the Bank include
balances with Bank of Uganda, loans and advances, investments in government securities,
balances with other banks, deposits, derivatives and group balances.

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and
subordinated lliabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial
instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue,

Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets Inte the following measurement categories;
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as either amortised cost or held at
fair value through profit or loss, management determines the classification of its financial
assets and liabilities at initial recognition of the instrument or where applicable at the time
of reclassification.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its financial instruments at the
time of purchase and re-evaluates |ts portfolio on a regular basis to ensure that all financial
instruments are appropriately classified. The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on the purpose and the management’s intention for which the financial
instruments were acquired and their characteristics.

Financial assets held at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Debt Instruments held at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPL
characteristics). Principal is the fair value of the financial asset at Initial recognition but this
may change over the life of the Instrument as the amounts are repaid. Interest consists of
consideration for time value of money, for the cradit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and other basic lending risks and
costs as well as a profit margin,
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2 SUMMARY O

F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets and liabilities(continued)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows have the SPPI characteristics, the Bank
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
cantractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment,

the

L I

bank considers;

Contingents events that would change the timing and amount of the cash flows;
Prepayment and extension terms;

Terms that limit the Banks claim to cash flows from a specified asset:

Features that may modify consideration of time value of money e.g. periodical reset of
Interest rates,

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at the individual product business line and where applicable within the business
lines depending on the way the business is managed and information provided to
management. Factors considered include;

How the performance of the product business line is evaluated and reported to the
Bank's management;

How managers of the business model are compensated including whether management
is compensated based on the fair value of the asset or the contractual cash Ffows
collected,

The risks that affect the performance of the business model and how risks are managed;
The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expactations about future sales activity,

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held
at the individual product business line and where applicable within the business lines
depending on the way the business is managed and information provided to management,
Factors considered include;

Business Business Objective Characteristics Products
Model 1
Hold to collect | Intent to  originate | - Providing financing and | -Lpans and
financial assets and originating assets to earn | advances
hold them to maturity, interest income as a primary | -Repos
collecting the income stream. -Placements
contractual cash flows Performing credit risk
over the term of the management activitles
instrument Costs include funding costs,
transaction and impairment
losses
Hold to collect | Business objective met -Portfolio held for ligquidity | Treasury  bills
and sell through both hold to needs; or where a certain | and bonds
collect and by selling interest  yield profile  is
financial assets maintained; or that are
normally rebalanced to
achieve matching of duration
of assets and liabilities.
-Income streams corme from
interest income, fair value
changes and |Impalrment
losses
Fair value | All  other business Assets held for trading -Government
through profit | objectives, including Performance of portfolio (s | bills and bonds
or loss trading and managing evaluated on a fair value basis | -Derivatives
financial assets on fair Income streams are from fair
value basis value changes or trading gains
and losses
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2.8 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets which have SPPI characteristics and that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to
collect”) are recorded at amortised cost Conversely, financial assets which have SPPI
characteristics but are held within a business model whose objective is achleved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets ("Hold to collect and sell”) are
classified as FVOCI.

Both hold to collect and hold to collect and sell business models inveolve holding financial assets
to collect the contractual cash flows, However the business models are distinct by reference to
the frequency and significance that asset values play in meeting the objective under which a
particular group of assets is managed. Hold to collect business models are characterised by
asset values that are incidental to meeting the objective under which a group of assets |s
managed. Sales of assets under a hold to collect business model can be made to manage
increases in credit risk of financial assets but sales for other reasons should be Infrequent and
insignificant.

Cash flows from the sale of a financial asset under a hold to collect and sell business model in
contrast are integral to achieving the objectives under which a particular group of financial
assets is managed. This may be a case where frequent sales of financial assets are required to
manage the Bank's liquidity reguirements or In order te meet regulatory reguirements to
demonstrate liquidity of financial instruments. Sales of assets under hold to collect and sell
business model are therefore both more frequent and more significant in value than those under
hold to collect model,

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets which are not held at amortised cost or that are not held at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and
liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are either mandatorily classified fair value
through profit or loss or irrevocably designated at fair value through profit or loss at Initial
recognition,

Mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities which are mandatorily held at fair value through profit or loss
include:

» financial assets and liabilities held for trading, which are those acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term;

« Hybrid financial assets that contain one or more embedded derivatives;

« financial assets that would otherwise be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI but which
do not have SPPI characteristics;

«  Equity instruments that have not been designated as held at FVOCI; and

« Financial llabilities that constitute contingent consideration in a business combination,

Designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities may be designated at fair value through profit or loss when the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement ar recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities on a different basis ("accounting
mismatch’).

Interest rate swaps have been acquired with the intention of significantly reducing interest rate
risk on certain leans and advances and debt securities with fixed rates of interest. To
significantly reduce the accounting mismatch between assets and liabilities and measurement
bases, these loans and advances and debt securities have been designated at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.8 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities may also be designated at fair value through profit or loss where they are
managed on a fair value basis or have a bifurcatable embedded derivative where the Bank is
not able to separately value the embedded derivative component.

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not financial guarantees or loan commitments and that are not
classified as financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are classified as financial
liahilities held at amortised cost,

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

The Bank issues financlal guarantee contracts and loan commitments in return for fees. Under
a financial guarantee contract, the Bank undertakes to meet a customer’s obligations under the
terms of a debt instrument if the customer fails to do so. Loan commitments are firm
commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments issued at below market interest rates are initially recognised
as liabilities at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the expected credit loss allowance,
and the amount Initially recognised less the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of IFRS15 Revenue from contracts with Customers.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date In the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous
market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability includes the risk
that the bank will not be able to honour its obligations,

The fair value of financial instruments is generally measured on the basis of the individual
financial instrument. However, when a group of financial assets and financial liabilities is
managed on the basis of its net exposure to either market risk or credit risk, the fair value of
the group of financial instruments is measured on a net basis.

The fair values of quoted financial assets and liabilities in active markets are based on current
prices. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If the
market for a financial instrument, and for unlisted securities, is not active, the Bank establishes
fair value by using valuation technigues.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss,
and debt securities classified as financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are initially recognised on the trade-date {(the date on which the Bank commits to
purchase or sell the asset). Loans and advances and other financial assets held at amortised
cost are recognised on settlement date (the date on which cash is advanced to the borrowers).
All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except
in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, which are recorded at fair value.

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, which is normally the transaction
price, plus directly attributable transaction costs for financlal assets which are not subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In certain circumstances, the initial fair value may
be based on a valuation technigue which may lead to the recognition of profits or losses at the
time of initial recognition. However, these profits or losses can only be recognised when the
valuation technigue used is based solely on observable market data. In those cases where the
initially recegnised fair value is based on a valuation model that uses unobservable inputs, the
difference between the transaction price and the valuation model s not recognised immediately
in the income statement but is amortised or released to the income statement as the inputs
become observable, or the transaction matures or is terminated,
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Subsequent measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortised cost are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method (see Interest income and expense). Foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Where a financial instrument
carried at amertised cost is the hedged item in a qualifying fair value hedge relationship, its
carrying value is adjusted by the fair value gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk.

Financial assets hald at FVYOCI

Debt instruments held at FVOCI are subsequently carrled at fair value, with all unrealised gains
and |osses arising from changes in fair value (including any related foreign exchange gains or
losses) recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component
of equity. Foreign exchange gains and losses on the amortised cost are recognised in income.

Changes in expected credit losses are recognised in the profit or loss and are accumulated in a
separate component of equity. On derecognition, the cumulative fair value gains or losses, net
of the cumulative expected credit loss reserve, are transferred to the profit or loss. Equity
investments designated at FVOCI are subsequently carried at fair value with all unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value (including any related foreign exchange gains or
losses) recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in a separate component
of equity. On derecognition, the cumulative reserve is transferred to retained earnings and is
not recycled to profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities mandatorily held at fair value through profit or less and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the net trading income line in
the profit or loss unless the instrument is part of a cash flow hedging relationship, Contractual
interest income on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Is recognised as
interest income in a separate line in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities designated fair value through profit or loss are held at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the net trading Income line in the profit or loss, other than
that attributable to changes in credit risk. Falr value changes attributable to credit risk and
recognised in other comprehensive income and recorded in a separate category of reserves
unless this is expected to create or enlarge an accounting mismatch, in which case the entire
change in fair value of the financial liability designated fair value through profit or loss Is
recognised in profit or loss

De-recognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the
Group has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the Bank's
continuing Involvement,

Where financial assets have been modified, the modified terms are assessed on a gualitative
and quantitative basis to determine whether a fundamental change in the nature of the
Instrument has occurred such that the derecognition of the pre-existing instrument and the
recognition of a new instrument is appropriate.
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2.B Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
{or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of the
consideration recelved (Including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income s
recognised in profit or loss except for equity Instruments elected FVOCI (see above) and
cumulative fair value adjustments attributable to the credit risk of a liability that are held in
other comprehensive income.,

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. A financial liability is
extinguished when the obligation Is discharged, cancelled or expires and this is evaluated both
qualitatively and guantitatively. However, where a financial liahility has been modified, it is
derecognised if the difference between the modified cash flows and the criginal cash flows is
more than 10 per cent,

If the Bank purchases Its own debt, it |s derecognised and the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in "Other income’ except for the
cumulative fair value adjustments attributable to the credit risk of a liability that are held in
other comprehensive income which are never recycled to the profit or loss,

Reclassification of financial instruments

Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to initial recognition. Reclassifications of
financial assets are made when, and only when, the business model for those assets changes.
Such changes are expected to be infrequent and arise as a result of significant external or
internal changes such as the termination of a line of business or the purchase of a subsidiary
whose business model is to realise the value of pre-existing held for trading financial assets
through a hold te collect model.

Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value on the date of reclassification and previgusly
recognised gains and losses are not restated. Moreover, reclassifications of financial assets
between financial assets held at amortised cost and financial assets held at fair value through
other comprehensive Income do not affect effective interest rate or expected credit loss
computations.

Reclassified from Amortised cost

Where financial assets held at amortised cost are reclassified to financial assets held at fair
value through profit or loss, the difference between the fair value of the assets at the date of
reclassification and the previously recognised amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss. For
financial assets held at amortised cost that are reclassified to fair value through other
comprehensive income, the difference between the fair value of the assets at the date of
reclassification and the previously recognised gross carrying value is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Additionally, the related cumulative expected credit loss amounts
relating to the reclassified financial assets are reclassified from loan loss allowances to a
separate reserve in other comprehensive income at the date of reclassification.

Reclassified from fair value through other comprehensive income

Where financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income are reclassified
to financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred to the profit or loss.

For financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income that are reclassified
to financial assets held at amortised cost, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset such that
the financial asset is recorded at a value as if It had always held at amortised cost. In addition,
the related cumulative expected credit losses held within other comprehensive income are
reversed against the gross carrying value of the reclassified assets at the date of reclassification.
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Reclassified from fair value through profit or loss

Where financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss are reclassified to financial assets
held at fair value through other comprehensive income or financial assets held at amortised
cost, the fair value at the date of reclassification is used to determine the effective interest rate
on the financial asset going forward. In addition, the date of reclassification is used as the date
of initial recognition for the calculation of expected credit losses. Where financial assets held at
fair value through profit or loss are reclassified to financial assets held at amortised cost, the
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes the gross carrying value of the financial asset.

Identification and measurement of impairment losses

IFRS 9 introduces a principles-based approach to the classification of financial assets, There are
three measurement classifications under IFRS 9; amortised cost, fair value through profit or
loss (FYTPL) and, for financial assets, fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)
based on the nature of the cash flows of the assets and an entity's business model. The
impalrment model (ECL model) contains a three-stage approach that is based on the change in
the credit guality of assets since initial recognition.

12 months expected credit losses (Stagel)

Expected credit losses are recognised at the time of initial recognition of a financial instrument
and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls arising from possible default events up to 12 months
into the future from the balance sheet date. Expected credit losses continue to be determined
on this basis until there is either a significant increase in the credit risk of an instrument or the
instrument becomes credit-impaired. If an instrument is no longer considered to exhibit a
significant increase in credit risk, expected credit losses will revert to being determined on a 12
month basis.

Significant increase in credit risk (Stage 2)

If a financial asset experiences a significant increase in credit risk {SICR) since initial
recognition, an expected credit loss prowvision is recognised for default events that may occur
over the lifetime of the asset.

At each reporting date, the Bank shall assess whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Bank
shall use the change In the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that Is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition,

The Bank follows a rebuttable presumption that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, The Bank can rebut this presumption if there is reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, that demonstrates that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition even though the contractual payments are maore
than 30 days past due. When an entity determines that there have been significant increases
in credit risk before contractual payments are more than 20 days past due, the rebuttable
presumption does not apply.

Qualitative factors assessed include those linked to current credit risk management processes,
such as lending placed on non-purely precautionary early alert (and subject to closer
manitoring) and observed changes in external indicators, such as market reports information
from other banks, press and credit bureau information, days past due and other management
actions for retail portfolios.
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A non-purely precautionary early alert account is one which exhibits risk or potential
weaknesses of a material nature requiring closer monitoring, supervision, or attention by
management. Weaknesses in such borrower’s account, If left uncorrected, could result In
deterioration of repayment prospects and the likelihood of being downgraded, Indicators could
include a rapid erosion of position within the industry, concerns over management’'s ability to
manage operations, weak/deterlorating operating results, liquidity strain and overdue balances
amongst other factors,

Credit impaired (or defaulted) exposures {Stage 3)

Financial assets that are credit impaired (or in default) represent those that are at least 90 days
past due in respect of principal and/for interest. Financial assets are also considered to be credit
impaired where the obligors are unlikely to pay on the occurrence of one or more observable
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset.
It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event but instead the combined effect of
several events may cause financial assets to become credit impaired. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit impaired include observable data about the following events;

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

* a breach of contract, such as default or past due event

* the Bank granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasaons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

* the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

« observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

+ adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group

+ National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.

* Purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects incurred credit
losses

Irrevocable lending commitments to a credit impaired obligor that have not yet been drawn
down are also included within the stage 3 credit impairment provision to the extent that the
commitment cannot be withdrawn vy cause financial assets to become credit impaired,

Loss allowances against credit impaired financial assets are determined based on an assessment
of the recoverable cash flows under a range of scenarios, including the realisation of any
collateral held where appropriate. The loss allowances held represent the difference between
the present value of the cash flows expected to be recovered, discounted at the Instrument’s
original effective interest rate, and the gross carrying value of the instrument prior to any credit
impairment,

Maodified financial instruments

Financial assets and financlal llabilities whose original contractual terms have been modified,
including those loans subject to forbearance strategles, are considered to be modified
instruments. Modifications may include changes to the tenor, cash flows and or interest rates
amongst other factors.). Where derecognition of financial assets is appropriate (see
Derecognition), the newly recognised residual loans are assessed to determine whether the
assets should be classified as purchased or originated credit impaired assets (POCI).

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral,
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated any impairment is measured using the
original Effective Interest Rate (EIR) as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan

50



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

is no longer considered past due. Management continuously reviews renegotiated loans to
ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to oceur.

The leans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment,
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Gains and losses arising from modifications for credit reasons are recorded as part of
Irmpairment’, Modification gains and losses arising for non credit reasons are recognised either
as part of "Impairment” or within income depending on whether there has been a change in the
credit risk on the financial asset subsequent to the modification. Modification gains and losses
arising on financial liabilities is recognised within income.

Forborne loans

Forborne |oans are those loans that have been modified in response to a customer's financial
difficulties. Forbearance strategies assist clients who are temporarily in financial distress and
are unable to meet their original contractual repayment terms. Forbearance can be initiated by
the client, the Bank or a third party including government sponsored programmes or a
conglomerate of credit institutions. Forbearance may include debt restructuring such as new
repayment schedules, payment deferrals, tenor extensions, interest only payments, lower
interest rates, forgiveness of principal, interest or fees, or relaxation of loan covenants.

Forborne loans that have been modified {and not derecognised) on terms that are not consistent
with those readily available in the market and/or where we have granted a concession compared
ko the original terms of the loans are considered to credit impaired if there is a detrimental
impact on cash flows. The modification loss (see Classification and measurement -
Modifications) is recognised in the profit or loss within 'Impairment’ and the gross carrying value
of the loan reduced by the same amount. The modified loan is disclosed as ‘Loans subject to
forbearance - credit impaired’.

Write-offs of credit impaired instruments & reversal of impairment

To the extent a financial debt instrument is considered irrecoverable, the applicable portion of
the gross carrying value is written off against the related loan allowance. Such loans are written
off after all the necessary procedures have been completed, It |5 decided that there is no realistic
probability of recovery and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previcusly written off decrease the, amount of the provision for loan impairment in
the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the credit impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the credit
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
previously recognised credit impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Improvement in credit risk/Curing

A period of time may elapse from the point at which financial instruments enter lifetime
expected credit losses (stage 2 or stage 3) and are reclassified back to 12 month expected
credit losses (stage 1), For financial assets that are credit-impaired (stage 3), a transfer to
stage 2 or stage 1 is only permitted where the |nstrument is no longer considered to be credit-
impaired. An instrument will no longer be considerad credit-impaired when there is no shortfall
of cash flows compared to the original contractual terms. For financial assets within stage 2,
these can only be transferred to stage 1 when they are no longer considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk,

Where significant increase in credit risk was determined using gquantitative measures, the
instruments will automatically transfer back to stage 1 where the residual lifetime PD reverts
to at least the origination residual lifetime PD for the same time period. Where instruments
were transferred to Stage 2 due Lo an assessment of gualitative factors, the issues that led to
the reclassification must be cured before the instruments can be reclassified to Stage 1. This
includes Instances where management actions led to instruments being classified as Stage 2,
requiring that action to be resolved before loans are reclassified to Stage 1.

For modifications that result in a significant increase in credit risk, instruments are only be

eligible for transfer back to stage 1 after the counterparty has complied with the modified
contractual terms for a period of at least 12 months,
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Significant accounting estimates and Judgements

The Bank's ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying

assumptions. The significant judgements and estimates in determining ECL include:

+ The Bank's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant Increase in credit risk

= Development of ECL models, including the wvarious formulas and the choice of inputs
including those relating to macroeconomic variables

The calculation of credit-impairment provisions also involves expert credit judgement to be
applied by the credit risk management team based upon counterparty information they receive
from various sources including relationship managers and on external market information.

(iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when and only when, there is currently enforceable legal right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultansously.

Income and expense are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS or from
gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as the Bank's trading activity.

Classes of financial instruments
The table summarises the impact on classification and measurement to the Bank's financial

assets and financial liabilities on 1 January 2018:

Financial assets Notes D”g.fﬂ‘a: New Measurement categ:or}a

and liabilities measurement under IFRS 9
category under TAS

Loans and advances 12b Loans and receivables Amartised cost

to banks

Loans and advances 13 Loans and receivables Amoartised cost

to customers

Government 12a Avallable-for-sale Fair value through other

securities investment securities comprehensive income

Government 12a Held to maturity amartised cost

securities Investment securities

Other assets 15 Loans and receivables Amortised cost

Other financial 20 Amortised cost Amortised cost

liabilities

Other liabilities 23 Amortised cost Amortised cost

Customer deposits 21 Amuortised cost Amortised cost
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Property and eguipment are initially recorded at cost. All other property and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of
purchased property and equipment is the value of consideration given to acquire the assets and
the value of other directly attributed costs, which have been incurred in bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for their intended service.

Property and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis and reducing balance basis to
write down the cost of assets, or the revalued amounts, to its residual value over its estimated
useful life using the following annual rates;

Item Rate % Method of Depreciation
Bulldings 5.0 Straight line bhasis

IT equipment 20.0 - 33.3 Straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures 12.5 Reducing balance basis
Motor vehicles 20.0 Reducing balance basis

Freehold Land is not depreciated.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included In "other operating expenses’ in profit or loss.

2.10 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capltalised on the basls of the costs Incurred to acquire

and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of three years.

2,11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amartisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss Is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value In use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets (other than goodwill) that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

An Impalrment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Income tax
{(a) Current income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised n other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

The current Income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, The Directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. They
establish provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities,

The tax currently payable is determined in accordance with the Ugandan Income Tax Act and is
based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in
the consolidated and separate statements of profit of loss because of itemns of income or expense
that are taxable or deduction in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible,
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{b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts In the financial
statements. However, deferred tax labilities are not recognised if they arise from the Initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred Income tax is not accounted for If it arises from initial
recoanition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset |s
realised or the deferred income tax liability 15 settled.

Deferred income tax assets are categorised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be categorised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets against current Income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabillties relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.13 Accounting for leases

Leases in which a significant portlon of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. All other leases are classified as finance leases.

(i} With the Group as lessee

To date, all leases entered into by the Group andfor Bank are operating leases, Payments
made under operating leases are recognised as an expense charged to the Statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentlves are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease,

(i) With the Group as lessor

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments
is categorized as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present
value of the recelvable |s categorised as unearned finance income. Lease income |5
categorised over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before income tax),
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with Banks, other short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, Including: cash
and non-restricted balances with the Central Bank, Treasury and other eligible bills, and
amounts due from other Banks. Cash and cash eguivalents excludes the Cash Reserve
Requirement held with the Central Bank.

2.15 Employee benefits/post employment benefits
a) Statutory obligations

All employees of the Group and Bank are obliged to be members of the Mational Social
Security Fund, a state managed defined contribution pension scheme, The Bank contributes
to the scheme in line with the requirements of the National Social Security Fund Act. The
regular contributions by the Bank and employees constitute net periedic costs for the year in
which they are due and as such charged to the Statement of profit or loss under "Employment
benefits expense” in Staff costs as incurred. Any differences between the charge to Statement
of Profit or loss and NSSF contributions payable is recorded in the Statement of Financial
position under "Other liabilities”,
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2.16

2.22

b) Long service awards

Employee entitlements to long service awards are recognised when they accrue to employees,
A provision is made for the estimated liability for such entitlements as a result of services
rendered by emplayees as at the reporting date.

The estimated monetary liability for employees’ acerued annual leave entitlement at the date
of the statement of financial position is categorised as an expense accrual,

Borrowings

Borrowings are categorized initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of
consideration received) net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption
value is categorised In the Statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective |nterest method.

Interest expense on borrowings is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for all interest
bearing liabilities measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, in the period
in which It is charged, The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating the interest expense over the relevant period.

Share capital

The Group classifies capital instruments as financial llabllities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Ordinary shares are classified as

equity.
Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the period in which they are declared,
Proposed dividends are shown as a separate component of equity until approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for |ts ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all any potentially
dilutive ordinary shares which comprise share options granted to employees.

Dividends payable

Dividends on ordinaty shares are charged to equity in the period in which they are declared,
Proposed dividends are shown as a separate component of equity until declared.

Financial guarantees and commitments

Acceptances and letters of credit are accounted for as off-balance sheet transactions and
disclosed as contingent liabilities. Transaction gains or losses on foreign denominated items are
recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
Banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts
and other facilities.

Loan commitments are firm commitments to pravide credit under pre-specified terms and
conditions.

Operating segments

The major part of business of the bank, which is all within Uganda, falls under the category of
commercial banking, with other income comprising less than 2% of the total income of the bank.
No segment information is therefore provided.
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3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated and separate financial statements and their financial results are influenced by
accounting policies, assumptions, estimates and Directors' judgement, which necessarily have to
be made in the course of preparation of these financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with
IFRS are best estimates undertaken In accordance with the applicable standard, Estimates and
judgments are evaluated on a continuous basis, and are based on past experience and other factors,
including expectations with regard to future events.

Accounting policies and Directors’ judgments for certain items are especially critical for the Group's
results and financial situation due to their materiality.

{a) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Directors review the Bank’ s loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a gquarterly basis.
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of profit or loss,
the Directors make judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating an impairment
trigger followed by measurable decrease In the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers In a Bank, or
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank. The
Directors use estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
cash flows, The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

(B} Solely Payments of Principal or Interest and Business model test

The group assesses whether the financial instruments cash flows represent solely repayments of
principal and interest (the SPFI test) In making this assessment the bank considers whether the
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement I.e. the interest includes only time value
for money, credit risk and other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is conslstent with basic
lending arrangement,

The business model reflects how the bank manages assets in order to generate cash flows that is
whether the bank's objective is solely to collect contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from sale of the assets,

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Uganda in accordance with the Ugandan Income Tax Act
which is considered complex due to the expertise required. The Group therefore uses external tax
consultants in reviewing of the tax computations and related income tax returns. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
Is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilised.,
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4,

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of
risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the Bank’s business, and the financial risks are
an inevitable consequence of being In business. The Bank's alm is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and categorise potential adverse effects on its
financial perfarmance.

Financial risk management is carrled out by the Treasury and Credit department under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments.

Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial
loss to the Bank by failing to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk is the most important risk
for the Bank's business: management therefore carefully manages the exposure to credit risk,
Credit exposures arise principally In lending and investment activities, There is also credit risk in
off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments. For risk management
purposes, credit risk arising on trading of securities is managed independently, but reported as a
component of market risk exposure.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or Banks of borrowers, and to industry segments.

Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to annual or more frequent review.
Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved quarterly
by the Board of Directors.

The exposire to any one borrower including Banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on-
and off-balance sheet exposures and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as
forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily,

The credit risk management and control are centralised in credit and treasury departments of the
Bank.

Measurement of credit risk

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers, the Bank reflects on various
components. These include;

- current exposures on the borrower/client and the likely future developrment, fram which the
Bank derives the exposure at default;
- the probability of default by the borrower/client on their contractual obligations; and

- the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations.

The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual borrower/client using internal rating
methods tailored to the various categories of the borrower/client. These have been developed and
combine statistical analysis with the credit department's judgment and are validated, whera
appropriate, by comparison with externally available data. The Directors assess the credit quality
of the customer, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual limits are set based on internal or external information in accordance with limits set,
The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Corrective action is taken where necessary,
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{a) Credit risk {continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages its credit risk, inter-alia by:

Formulating credit policies covering collateral requirements, credit assessment risk grading,

legal procedures for documentation, reporting and compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Establishing the authority structure for approval and renewal of credit facilities. Discretianary
lending powers have been allocated to the Credit Committee of Board, Credit Management
Committee, Managing Director, Assistant General Managers, Chief Managers/ Senior Branch
Managers, Credit Committee of the Board to oversee the cradit portfolio of the Bank.

Developing and maintaining the Bank" s risk grading in order to categorise exposures according
to degree of risk of financial loss faced and the focus on management of consequent risk or
loss. The current risk grading framework consist of 5 categories of risk grades reflecting the
varying grades of risk of default and availability of collaterals or other risk mitigates, risk grades
are subject to regular review by the Bank.

Setting exposure limits l.e. credit concentration. The Bank has in place a framework of
exposure celling of various industries, counterparties, country (for investment securities) etc.

In review and assessment of credit risk, the Bank carries out a conscious assessment of credit
exposure in excess of designated limits, prior to the facilities being committed to the customer,
This is & part of the appraisal system for processing the reguest of borrower for a credit facility,
Renewals and review of credit facilities are also subject to the same appraisal criteria.

Review of the compliance of the various regulatory limits, exposure ceilings etc. at regular
Intervals by the Bank.

The Directors provide assistance to the business units/branches to promote best practices for
credit appraisal throughout the Bank in management of credit risk.

Each branch/business unit is responsible for implementing, complying and monitoring with the
credit policies in order to build up & quality credit portfolio, including thase which are sanctioned

by head office. Regular audit of the branches is undertaken by the internal audit,

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below:

Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most common
one is to obtain collateral for loans and advances to customers, The types of collateral
obtained include:

* Martgages over properties;

+ Charges over business assets such as land and buildings, inventory and receivables;

= Charges over financial instruments such as investments; and

« Deposits placed under lien,

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential

borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk Is also managed in part by ohtaining collateral and corporate
and personal guarantees, but a significant portion is personal lending where no such facilities can

be obtained.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk {(continued)
Credi entks

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the
Bank will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties,
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written
undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer categorized a third party to draw drafts on the
Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are categorizations by the

underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct
borrowing.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of categorizations to extend credit in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss |5 less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally
have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments,

: r redit risk i
Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Loans and advances with Banks 133,043,187 163,899,210 133,043,187 163,899,210
Government & other securities:
- Amortised cost 7,148,500 12,662,515 7,149,500 12,662,515
= Fair Value 501,167,838 487,743,741 501,167,838 487,743,741
Amounts due from other Group
companles 36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835,816
Loans and advances to customers (net) 757,188,839 616,574,425 757,188,839 616,574,425
Other assets 3,476,544 3,476,050 3,241,524 3,206,633
Credit exposure relating to off-balance
sheet items:
- Contingencies secured by cash
collateral 28,631,405 25,528,944 28,631,405 25,528,944
- Direct credit substitutes (guarantees and
acceptances) 38,756,659 34,607,248 38,796,659 34,607,248
= Transaction related {performance
uonds and standbys) 11,900,110 14,230,150 11,900,110 14,230,150
= Documentary credits (trade related
and seif-liquidating) 50,965,186 25,762,284 50,965,186 25,762,284
- Unutilised formal facilities 145,961,162 101,754,710 145,961,162 101,754,710

1,715,131,325

1,506,075,093

1,714,896, 305

1,505,895 676

The table above represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group and Bank at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based on carrying

amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

As shown above, 46.16% of the total maximum exposure of the Bank Is derived from loans and advances
to Banks and customers (2017: 40.94%). 30.99% represents investments in debt securities (2017:

33.23%),
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4;

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

{a} Credit risk (continued)

Management is confident on its ability to continue to contral and sustain minimal exposure of
credit risk to the Group and Bank resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio and deht

securities based on the following:

impaired

92.71% (2017: 98.60%) of the loans are backed by collaterals

Loans and advances are categorized as
follows:

MNeither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired

Gross advances
Less: Allowance for impairment (Note 13)

nces neither r

B80.91% (2017: 93.52%) of the loans and advances portfolic are neither past due nor

100.00% (2017: 100%) of the investments in debt securities are government securities.
The Bank exercises stringent control over granting of new loans

2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
618,210,570 597,693,104
129,497,293 5,903,704
16,397,329 35,217,203
764,105,192 639,114,011
(6,916,354) {22,539,586)
757,188,838 616,574,425

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired

can be assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Bank:

Standard

Loans an W ut not impaire

618,210,570

2018
Shs'000

2017

Shs'000

597,693,104

Loans and advances less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired, unless other
Information |s available to indicate the contrary. The gross amounts of loans and advances that

were past due but not impaired were as follows:

2018

Shs'000

Past due up to 30 days 56,808,185
Past due 31 - 60 days 41,288,858
Past due 61 - B89 days 31,400,250
Total 129,497,293

2017

Shs'000

2,479,556
2,066,296
1,357,852

5,903,704
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk {continued)

Loans and adwv individually impai

Of the total gross amount of impaired loans, the following amaounts have been individually

assessed:
2018 2017
Ushs'000 Ushs 000
Loans

- Corporate 4,477,019 16,451,020
- Retail 377,823 468,578
4,854,842 16,919,598

Overdrafts
- Corporate 11,010,112 17,637,934
- Retail 532,375 959,671
11,542,487 18,597,605
Total impaired loans and advances 16,397,329 35,517,203

Concentration of risk

Economic sector risk concentrations within the customer loan and deposit portfolios wers as

follows:

Loans and Customer Credit
advances deposits commitments

At 31 December 2018
Manufacturing 35.07 4.40 34,12
Whaolesale and retail trade 10.40 4.45 18.55
Transport and communications 0.01 0.20 0.00
Building and construction 15.01 2.68 B.22
Agricultural 26.57 1.38 19.62
Individuals 0.60 58.39 0.20
Other 12.33 28.4 19.28
Gross 100.00 100.00 100.00
At 31 December 2017 % L O
Manufacturing 29.27 1.82 40.8
Wholesale and retail trade 12.61 5.9 13.1
Transport and communications 0.54 0.44 0.0
Building and construction 15.72 1.94 5.8
Agricultural 27.57 3.31 21.9
Individuals 0.65 56.4 0.0
Other 13.63 30.19 18.4
100.00 100.00 100.00
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(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans with renegotiated terms

The contractual terms of a loan may be modifled for a number of reasons, including changing
market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit
deterioration of the customer, An existing loan may be derecognised and the renegotiated loan
recognised as a new loan at fair value, The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial
difficulties to maximise collection apportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank's
credit policy, loan restructure is granted on a selective basis if the debtor Is currently in default
on its debt ar if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable
efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meset
the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, chanaing the timing of interest and
principal payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. For the purposes of disclosures
in these financial statements, 'loans with renegotiated terms’ are defined as loans that have been
restructured due to a deterioration in the borrower’s credit risk profile, for which the Bank has
made concessions by agreeing to terms and conditions that are more favourable for the borrower
than the Bank had provided Initially and that it would not otherwise consider. A loan continues to
be presented as part of loans with renegotiated terms until maturity, earlier repayment or until
it is written off.

Collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial effect

The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage
interests over property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees,

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing,
and are regularly updated through the life of the credit facility, Collateral requirements are based
on the individual risk rating of borrowers as stipulated in the Bank's policy.

The table below sets out the principal types of collateral held against different types of financial
assets,

Exposure that is subject to collateral

As at 31 December (Shs' 000)

Type of credit exposure 2018 2017 Principal type of security held
Personal Loans-Unsecured 3,682,361 455,802  Un-secured
Personal Loans-Secured 735,206 20,817,658  Property, Lien on deposit
General Asset Charge, Property,
Overdrafts 409,072,850 337,418,049 Guarantees
General Asset Charge, Property,
Commercial Loans 350,614,775 268,B18,020 Guarantees
Repos and Reverse Repos - 86,717,078 Marketable Securities
TOTAL 764,102,192 714,226,607

Trading assets

The bank held assets at Fair Value of Shs 501 Billion as at 31 December 2018 (2017; Shs 488
Billion) comprise of treasury bills and bonds issued by Bank of Uganda which are considered to
be low risk,

n n rporate customer

The general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of
credit quality of a loan extended to them. However, collateral provides additional security and
the Bank generally requests that corporate borrowers provide it The Bank may take collateral in
the form of a first charge over real estate, floating charges over all corporate assets and other
liens and guarantees,
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued})

Because of the Bank's focus on corporate customers' creditworthiness, the Bank has established
a policy to update the valuation of collateral held against all loans to customers after every three
(3) years. Additionally, valuation of collateral is updated, or fresh valuations are carried out when
the credit risk of a loan deteriorates significantly and the loan is monitored more cosely or at
point of foreclosure. For impaired loans, the Bank obtains appraisals of collateral because the
current value of the collateral is an input to the impairment measurement. At 31 December 2018,
the net carrying amount of impaired loans and advances to corporate customers amounted to
Shs 15,487 million (2017: Shs 34,088 million) and the value of identifiable collateral held against
those leans and advances amounted to Shs 39,453 million (2017: Shs 74,114 million),

Residenti in

The table below stratifies credit exposures from mortgage loans and advances to retail customers
by ranges of loan-to-value {"LTV") ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the
loan to the value of the collateral. The gross amounts exclude any impairment allowance, The
valuation of the collateral excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral. The
value of the collateral for residential mortgage loans is based on the collateral value at origination
updated based on changes in house price indices.

2018 2017
LTV ratio Shs" 00O Shs’ 000
Less than 60% - =
61 - 100% 910,198 1,428,249
Maore than 100% =
910,198 1,428,249
—_—

Other types of collateral and credit enhancements

In addition to the collateral included in the tables above, the Bank also holds ather types of
collateral and credit enhancements such as second charges and floating charges for which specific
values are not generally available.

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

The Bank's policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly manner. The Bank
does not generally use the non-cash collateral for its own operations.

Wri

The Bank writes off a loan balance in accordance with the Financial Institution Regulation on
Credit Classification and Provisioning, regulation 11 {5), which requires credit facilities classified
“loss” to be written off within 90 days, unless approval of the Central Bank has been obtained.

Settlement risk

The Bank's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trades.
Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a Bank to honour its obligations to deliver
cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed. Settlement limits form part of the credit
approval/limit monitoring process described earlier.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at the reporting date, the total cash and cash equivalents held by the Group amounted ta
Shs164,395 million (2017; Shs 206,150 million} as disclosed in Note 30 to these consolidated
and separate financial statements. The cash and cash equivalents Included Notes and coins,
Balances with Bank of Uganda, Overseas branches of the Bank of Baroda ("BOB") and Deposits/
balances with other financial institution counterparties whose credit risk is considered to be
medium to low.
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4

FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{a) Credit risk (continued)
The Parent Bank (i.e. BOB India) and its overseas branches/ banks (i.e. BOB Brussels, BOB
London, BOB New York) have a similar credit rating of Baa2 obtained from Moody' s credit

agency. Bank of Baroda, Nairobi is unrated. BOB London |s now a subsidiary of the parent bank
and is unrated,

Other than the banks under the parent company, the Bank has deposits/ balances with Standard
Chartered Bank, New York, which has a credit rating of A1 based on Moody ' s Credit Agency.

Loans and advances tp Banks

The total gross amount of Individually impaired loans and advances to Banks as at 31 December,
2018 was nll (2017: nil). No collateral is held by the Bank.

{b) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are overdrawn. The
consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and full commitments to
lend.

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current
accounts, maturing deposit and calls on cash settled contingencies. The Bank does not maintain
cash resources to meet all these needs as experience that a minimum level of reinvestment of
maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty.

The Bank of Uganda requires that the Bank maintains a Cash Reserve Ratio. In addition, the Board
sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the
minimum inter-Bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at
unexpected level of demand. The treasury department of the Bank monitors the liquidity ratio on
a daily basis.

The table overleaf analyses the Group’ s and Bank’ s financial assets and liabilities into the relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of financial position date to
the contractual maturity date.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b} Liquidity risk {continued)

Consolidated

At 31 December 2018

Financial Assets

Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda
Government debt securities

Loans and advances tao Banks

Loans and advances to customers
Amounts due from overseas branches of
parent company

Deposits and halances due farm other
financial institutions

Total financial assets (expected maturity

dates)

Financial Liabilities
Customer deposits

Cther financial liabilities

Cther liabilities

Deferred Income tax liabilities
Shareholders' Eguity

Total Financial liabilities { contractual
maturity dates)

On balance sheet liguidity gap

Off balance sheet

Acceptance guarantees, letters of credit
Credit commitments

Off balance sheet exposure

MNet liquidity gap

] [] | | ] ] ] ] | ] 1 ] ]

Uptol 1 -3 months 3 = 12 months 1 -5 years Over 5 years Total
muonth

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000D Shs'000 S5hs"'000
164,394 812 - - 164,394,812
18,575,131 72,210,078 216,969,583 179,756,578 25,805,968 508,317,338
79,084 916 44,683,271 9,275,000 - - 133,043,187
41,994 B47 67,922,823 120,647,334 176,448 2448 350,175,387 757,188,839
36,850,895 - - - - 36,850,895
80,784,756 & = - - 80,784,756
421,685,357 184,816,172 340,591,917 356,205,026 376,981,355 1,680,579,827
06,068,718 248,519,924 335,441,840 621,780,295 1,301,810,777
11,188,328 - H - - 11,188,328
- - 25,058,781 = o 25,058,781
- - 1,413,064 - - 1,413,064
- E = 374,737,021 374,737,021

107,257,046

248,519,924

361,913,685

621,780,295

374,737,021 1,714,207,971

314I4lﬂ!311 ! E!I?’DZI?‘SI ! (5,485,586) {265,575,269) 20,336,296 =
25,006,748 35,621,673 66,770,067 2,894,873 - 130,293,361
36,490,291 109,470,872 145,961,163
61,497,039 145,092 545 66,770,067 2,894 B73 - 276,254 524
=t ——— ———f——— = —=————
252:931;2_72 i lﬂﬂi?ﬂﬁllﬂ?’i {72,255653) (268,470,142) 20,336,296 [2?5‘254=5 241
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{b) Liquidity risk {continued)
Upto 1l 1 - 3 months 3-12 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Separate month months
At 31 December 2018 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Financial Assets
Cash and balances with Bank of Liganda 164,262,009 164,262,009
Government debt securities 18,575,131 72,210,078 210,969 583 179,756,578 26,805,968 508,317,338
Loans and advances to Banks 79,084,916 44 683,271 9,275,000 = - 133,043,187
Loans and advances to customers 41,994 347 67,922,823 120,647,334 176,448 448 350,175,387 757,188,839
Amounts due from overseas branches of 36,850,895 36,850,895
parent company
Deposits and balances due farm other financial 80,784,756 B0, 784,756
Institutions
Total financial assets (expected maturity
dates) 421,552,554 184,816,172 340,891,917 356,205,026 376,981,355 1,680,447 024
Financial Liabilities
_ Customer Depasit B 96,068,717 24E,519,524 335,441,840 622,138 897 1,302,169,378
[ Other financial abilities 11,188,328 - - 11,188,328
Amounts due to overseas branches of parent - i 2 : -
| company -
| Other liabilities - - - - 24,935 844 24,935 844
Fletlrement benefit ul:llrgatmn N A - - - 1,413,064 - 1,413,064
_S[larehplgers Eqquity o — = = - B 374,146,166 374,146,186
Total financial liabilities {contractual
maturity dates) 10?:15?!045 _____ 248,519,924 519,924 335,441,840 Elﬂ 487,805 374,146,186 1,713,852 800
0On balance sheet liquidity gap 31412!5‘509 lESI?Dﬂi?SZI 20,765,649 |291I132‘??91 20,925,373 -
Off balance sheat
Acceptance guarantees, letters of credit 25,006,748 35,621,673 66,770,067 2,894,873 - 130,293 361
Credit commitments 36,490,291 109,470,872 145,961,163
Off balance sheet exposure 61,497,039 145 092 545 66,770 067 2,894 B73 276,254 524
Met liquidity gap ISZFHBIH"D (208,796,297) i-‘I-EII:H:M!-Ilt! 295,177,652 20,925,373 (276,254,524)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 {CONTINLUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Up to 1 month 1 - 3 months 3 - 12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
At 31 December 2017 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000D Shs'000
Financial assets

Cash and balances with Bank of Uganda 187,847,620 18,302,823 - - - 206,150,443
Government debt securities 92,438,378 164,828,410 154,374,663 64,191,968 24,572,837 500,406,256
Loans and advances to Banks - - 163,899,210 - - 163,899 210
Loans and advances to customers 35,047,585 52,921,470 102,019,157 185,524,531 241,061,682 616,574,425
Amounts due from overseas branches of parent

company 15,835,816 o = i e 12,835,816
Deposits and balances due form other financial

institutions 4909111 = - - - 4,909,111
Other assets = = 3,476,050 = = 3,476,050
Current tax receivable - = 1,385,752 = = 1,385,752
Total financial assets (expected maturity dates) 340,078,510 236,052,703 425,154,832 249,716,499 265,634,519 1,516,637,063
Financial Liabilities

Customer deposits 98,039,375 228,729 444 535,348,769 3,106,467 201,021,547 1,166,245,602
Other financial liabilities 11,732,870 2,518,994 - - 4,897,012 19,248,876
Other liabilitles = & 16,016,622 - = 16,015,622
Taotal financial liabilities [contractual maturity

dates) 109,772,245 231,348,438 651,365,391 3,106,467 205,918,559 1,201,511,100
On balance sheet liquidity gap 130|305i165 45?{”5155 |21\Ei210‘5591 MEHELDIDSZ 59i?15‘96ﬂ 315,1_25,953
Off balance sheet

Acceptance guarantees, letters of credit 1B,297,294 23,864,913 56,602,339 1,364 080 - 100,128,626
Credit commitments 2
Off balance sheet exposure 15,297,294 23,864 913 56,602,339 1 364,080 = 100,128,626
Net liquidity gap 212,008,971 (19,160,648) (282,812, 898) 245,245,952 59,715,960 214,997,337
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4.

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that changes in market prices, which include currency exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument. Market risk
arises from open positions in Interest rates and foreign currencies, both of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits,
while the return on risk. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Board
Assets and Liabilities Committee (BALCO). The Treasury department is responsible for the
development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by BALCO)
and far the day to day implementation of those policies.

The major measurement technigues used to measure and control market risk are outlined belaw;

* Value at Risk

The Bank applies a "Value at Risk" methodology (VaR) to its trading and non-trading portfolios,
to estimate market risk of positions held and maximum losses expected based upon a number of
assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The board sets limits on the value of risk
that may be accepted by the Bank, trading and non-trading separately, which are monitared on
a daily basis by the treasury department.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on the current portfolio from adverse
market movements, It expresses the maximum amount the Bank might lose, but only to a certain
level of confidence (98%). Therefore there is a specified statistical probability {2%) that actual
loss could be greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a certain helding period
until positions can be closed (10 days). It alse assumes that market moves occurring over this
holding period will follow a similar pattern to those that have over 10 day period in the past. The
Bank’s assessment of past movement is based on data for the past five years. The Bank applies
these historical simulation in the model to generate the outcomes on the trading and non-trading
portfolios. The actual cutcome is monitored regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and
parameters/factors used in VaR calculation.

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside these limits in the event of more
significant market movements.

The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by back testing the VaR results on trading
books. All back testing exceptions and any exceptional revenues on the profit side of the VaR
distribution are investigated and all back testing results are reported to the Board of Directors,

Group and Bank' s VaR summary for 2018 and 2017:

- VaR by risk type Consolidated and separate
Average High Low
Shs" 000 Shs’ 000 Shs 000

12 Months ended 31 December 2018

Foreign exchange risk
Interest rate risk

12 Months ended 31 December 2017
Fareign exchange risk
Interest rate risk

3,490,083 3,698,072 3,175,978
9,104,303 10,023,585 9,237,195

12,594,386 13,721 657 12,413,173

8,646,459 9,212,412 7,791,754
9,841,069 10,053,566 9,616,100

18,487,528 19,265,378 17,407,854




BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{c) Market risk {continued)
= Value at Risk (continued)

- Non trading portfolio VaR by risk type Consolidated and separate
Average High Low
Year ended 31 December 2018 Shs’ 000 Shs” 000 Shs’ 000
Foreign exchange risk 3,490,083 3,698,072 3,175,978
Interest rate risk 9,104,303 10,023,585 9,237,195

12,594,386 13,721,657 12,413,173

Year ended 31 December 2017
Fareign exchange risk 8,646,459 9,212,412 7,791,754
Interest rate risk 9,841,069 10,053,566 9,616,100

18,487,528 19,265,978 17,407,854

+ Stress test

Stress test provides an indication of the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme
conditions. The stress tests carried out by the treasury department include: risk factor, stress
testing where stress movements are applied to each risk category, emerging market stress
testing, where emerging market portfolios are subject to stress movements and adhoc stress
testing, which includes applying possible stress events to specific positions or regions - for
example the stress outcome to a region following currency peg break. The results of the stress
tests are reviewed by senior management in each business unit. The stress test is tallored to the
business and typically uses scenario analysis,

{l} Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s assets are typically funded in the same currency as the business transacted to
eliminates foreign exchange exposures. However, the Group maintains an open position within
the tolerance limits prescribed by the Financial Institutions Act 2004 and approved by the Board.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily
with respect to the US Dollar, Euro and GBP. The risk arises from future transactions, assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position date.

The intraday positions are managed by treasury through stop loss/dealer limits.End of day
positions are marked to market.

The table below summarises the effect on post-tax profit and components of equity had the
Uganda Shillings weakened by 10% against each currency, with all other variables held constant.
If the Uganda Shilling strengthened against each currency, the effect would have been the
opposite. The 10% sensitivity represents Director's assessment of the reasonable change in
exchange rates.,

Other
usop EURD GBEP currencies®*
Year ended 31 December 2018
Effect on profit and equity : decrease {876,727) (267,358) (91,294) (427,299)
Year ended 31 December 2017
Effect on profit and equity : decrease (2,968,854) {506,379) (22,592 (92,719)

* Other currencies comprise of Kenyan Shillings (KES), Tanzanian Shillings (TZS) & Indian
Rupee (INR) which are individually small and thus have been aggregated in one portfolio to
assess the foreign exchange risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 {CONTINUED)

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{c}) Market risk (continued)

(if) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The Group’ s transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains
and losses that are recognised In the Statement of profit or loss. In respect of monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate.

Separate

EURD uso GEP USH Others*® Total
At 31 December Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Assets
Cash and balances with BOU 274,589 31,738,451 228,577 131,888,889 131,503 164,262,009
Government securities 508,317,338 - 508,317,338
Loans and advances with Banks 121,023,941 12,019,246 133,043,187
Amounts due from overseas branches 4,313,153 18,959,032 13,588,276 - {10,56&) 316,850,805
Deposits and balances due from other - BO, 784,756 = - - 80.784.756
Other assets (242,840} B55,694 79,374 2,596,250 {46,953} 3.241.525
Current tax receivable - = - 8,491,215 - 8,491.215
Investment in subsidiaries - - . 40,000 - 40,000
Loans and advances to customers - 507,736,600 - 249,452 2359 - 757,188,839
Deferred tax - - - 3,420,987 - 3,420,987
Intanaible assets 121.845 121.B45
property and eguipment - - = 18,090,204 = 18,090,204
Total Assets 4,344 9032 JB1.068 474 B o X 7 934,438,213 3,984 — 1.713.852.800
Liabilities and shareholders’ )
Other financial labilities - - - 11,188,328 - 11,188,328
Customer deposits 4,230,077 757,543,129 13,827,083 526,548,449 20,640 1.302,.169.378
Other liahilities 114,825 3,555,345 70,144 21,142,186 53,344 24,935 844
Retirement benefit obligation = - - 1,413.064 - 1,413,064
Deferred income tax liabilities = N - - - -
Shareholder” s aguity = - = 374,146,186 = 374146180
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 4,344,902 751,098,474 13,897,227 034 438,213 73,984 1,713,852 800

Met on Balance sheet position - - - = 5 =

Acceptance quarantees, letters of =
Credit commitrments - - = ¥

Met off Balance sheet position - - - - = =
Overall position - = 2 & =
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{d) Market risk {continued)

Currency risk {continued})

Separate

At 31 December 2017
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

Met on Balance sheet
position

Met off Balance sheet
position

Overall position

| | | | | | [ ] ] ] | | 1
EURO usp GBP USH Others* Total
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
4,879,503 602,999,475 15,127,554 912,290,525 165,653 1,535,462,710
3,959,472 593,211,959 15,148,440 593,126,208 76,046 1,205,522,125
520,031 9,787,516 {20,886) 319,164,317 89,607 329,940,585
2,540,231 97,646,536 736,530 (3,089,952} 2,295,281 100,128,626
3,460,262 107,434,052 715,644 316,074,365 2,384,888 430,069,211

* Others comprise of Kenyan Shillings (KES), Tanzanian Shillings {TZS) & Indian Rupee (INR} which are individually small and thus have been
aggregated in one portfolio to assess the fareign exchange risk.

71



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4,
(<)
(i)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk {continued)
Currency risk (continued)

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:

Consolidated and Separate 2018 2017
Us Dollar 3,710 3,640
GBP 4,746 4,917
Euro 4 238 4,363
INR 53 57
KShs 36 35

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment's value will change due to a change in the absolute
level of interest rates, i.e. the spread between two rates, In the shape of the yield curve, or in
any other interest rate relationship.

The Bank's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different rimes or in
different amounts. Risk management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest Income, given
market interest rates levels consistent with the Bank's business strategies,

The Bank is exposed to various risks associated with the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing
levels of market interast rates on its financial pasition and cash flows. The management closely
maniter the interest rate trends to minimise the potential adverse impact of interest rate changes.
The major portion related to this risk is reflected in the Banking book owing to investments in
fixed rate treasury bonds. The overall potential impact of the mismatches on the earnings in shart-
term and economic value of the portfolio In the long-term is not material and is being managed
within the tolerance limits approved by the Board.

The table summarises the exposure to interest rate risk at the date of the Statement of financial
position. Included in the table are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by
the earlier of contractual repricing on maturity dates. The Bank does not have any denvative
financial instruments. The Bank does not bear an interest rate risk on off balance sheet [tems.

I



| ] ] 1 | ] | | ] | | 1 | | [ | i i | | 1
BANK OF BARODA {UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Market risk (continued)

{iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

Separate

Non-interest

At 31 December 2018 Up to 1 month 1 - 3 months 3 - 12 months 1-5years Over 5 years bearing Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Bank of 10,000,000 - - 154,262,009 164,262,009
Uganda

Government Securities 18,575,131 72,210,078 210,969,583 179,756,578 26,805,968 = 508,317,338
Loans and advances to Banks 79,084,916 44 683,271 9,275,000 - - - 133,043,187
Loans and advances to customers 41,994 B47 67,922,823 120,647,334 176,448 448 350,175,387 - 757,188,839
Amounts due from overseas 36,850,895 - = = - - 36,850,895
branches of parent company
Deposits and balances due farm B0, 784,756 - - - - 80,784,756
other financial institutions

Other assets - - % = 3,241,525 3,241,525
Current tax recelvable - - = - 8,491,215 B,491 215
Investment in subsidiaries = - - % E 40,000 40,000
Deferred Tax - = - = 3,420,987 3,420,987
Property and Equipment = = - - 18,212,049 18,212,040
Total assets 267,290,545 ___1B4,B16,172 340,851,917 356,205,026 376,981 355 187,667,785 1,713,852,B00
Liabilities and shareholders”
equity

Customer Deposits 85,298,262 226,979,015 335,441 840 440,084,835 - 214365426 1,302,169.378
Cther financial llabllities 11,188,328 - = - - - 11,188,328
Other Liabilities = = - =5 24,935,844 24,935,844
Retirement benefit abligation = - = - 1,413,064 1,413,064
Shareholders’ Equity - = - = 374 146,186 374,146 186
Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity 96,486,590 226,979,015 335,441,840 440,084,835 - 614,860,520 1,713,852,800
Interest sensitivity gap as at
31 December 2018 170,803,955 42,162 843) 5,450,077 (83 6879,809) 376,981,355 !42?!“2I7351 -
At 31 December 2017
Total Assets 340,039,187 236,052,703 420,293,030 249,587,322 265,763,696 23,726,772 1,535,462,710
Total Liabilities and equity 109,772,245 231,436,767 635,348,765 3,106 467 206,271,170 349 537,292 1,535,462,710
Interest sensitivity gap as At
31 December 2017 230,266,942 4,615,936 5115‘1155‘?39; 246,480,855 59,492,526 (325,800,520) -
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTIMUED)
{c) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturitles and interest rates of assets and
liabilities is fundamental to the management of the Bank. It is unusual for Bank risk to be
completely matched since business transacted is often of uncertain terms and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.
Management is of the view that the mismatch does not subject the Bank to severe liquidity risks
because maturities for all government securities and balances with overseas financial institutions
can be restructured in accordance with business demands.

The table below summarises the effective interest rates calculated on a weighted average basis,
by major currencies for monetary financial assets and liabilities:

2018
Shs us % GBE Euro
Yo % % Ay
Government securities 12.57 - . =
Other financial assets 9,12 1.73 0.29 1.01
Customer deposits 8.32 0.64 0.77 0.09
2017
Shs us GBP £ Euro
U kY B Yo
Government securities 17.42 - - =
Other financial assets 13.42 0.68 0.42 1.83
Customer deposits 9.8 0.56 1.29 0.08

The Bank has various financial assets and liabilities at variable rates, which expose the Bank to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Bank regularly monitors financing options available to ensure
optimum interest rates are obtalned.

Interest rate sensitivity

As at December 31, 2018, if the weighted average interest rate for all interest bearing assets as
at that date had been 10% lowerfhigher with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been Shs 14,055 million (2017: Shs 10,374 million) lower/higher, arising
mainly as a result of change in interest income,

As at December 31, 2017, if the weighted average interest rate for all interest bearing liabilities
as at that date had been 10% lower/higher with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been Shs 10,878 million (2017: Shs 4,100 million) higher/lower, arising
mainly as a result of change In Interest expense.

(iv) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors
ather than credit, market and liguidity risks such as those arising out of legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risk arises
from the Bank's operations and is faced by all other business entities. The Bank endeavours to
manage the operational risk by creating a balance between aveidance of cost or financial losses
and damage to the Bank's reputation within overall cost effectiveness and to avold control
procedures that restrict creativity and initlative. The key responsibility for development policies
and programs to implement the Bank's operational risk management is with the senior policies
and programs to implement the Bank's operational risk management Is with the senior
management of the Bank.
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4.

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

Market risk {continued)

(iv) Operational risk (continued)

(d)

(e)

The above Is achieved by development of overall standards for the Bank to manage the risk in
the following areas:

1) Segregation of dutles including independent authorisation of transactions
2) Monltaring and reconciliation of transactions

3) Compliance to regulatory and legal requirement

4} Documentation of control and procedure

5) Assessment of the operational risk on a yearly basis to address the deficiencies observed, if
any

&) Reporting of operational losses and initiation of remedial action

7) Development of contingency plans

8) Giving training to staff to improve their professional competency

9) Ethical and business standards

10) Obtaining Insurance wherever feasible, as a risk mitigation measure.

Compliance of Bank's standards is supported by periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit.
The observations of the Internal Audit are discussed with the management of the Bank and the
summaries are submitted to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Risk measurement and control

Interest rate, currency, credit, liquidity and other risks are actively managed by management to
ensure compliance with the Bank's risk limits. The Bank's risk limits are assessed regularly to
ensure their appropriateness given Its objectives and strategies and current market conditions. A
variety of technigues are used by the Bank in measuring the market risks (l.e. currency and
liquidity risks) Inherent in its trading and non-trading positions.

Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities

The Directors estimate the fair values of the Bank’s non-financial assets and liabilities to
approximate their respective carrying amounts, due to the generally short periods to contractual
repricing or maturity dates. Fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate
based upon the borrowing rate that the Directors expect would be available to the Bank at the
date of the Statement of financial position.

Capital Management
Internally imposed capital requirements

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which Is a broader concept than the 'equity’ on
the statement of financial position, are:

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk;

* to comply with the capital requirements set by Bank of Uganda({BOU);

= to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

* to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business; and

* [0 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{e} Capital Management {continued)

Capital adequacy and use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by management,
employing technigues based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
by the Bank of Uganda for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the Bank
of Uganda on a guarterly basis,

Externally imposed capital requirements

The Financial Institutions Act 2004 reguires each Bank to: (&) hold the minimurm level of
regulatory capital of Shs 25 Billion as at

Bank of Uganda requires each Bank to: (a) hold the minimum level of regulatory capital of Shs 25
Billion as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Shs 25 billlion); (b) maintain core capital of not less than
10% of total risk welghted assets plus risk weighted off balance sheet items as per " The Financial
Institutions (Capital Adequacy Requirements} Regulations, 2018"; and (c) maintain total capital
of not less than 12% of risk-welghted assets plus risk-weighted off-balance sheet items.

The Bank’s total requlatory capital is divided into two tiers:

« Tier 1 capital (core capital): share capital, share premium, and retained earnings and reserves
created by appropriations of retained eamings. The book value of goodwill, current year
losses, prohibited loans to insiders, investments in unconsolidated financial statements,
future income tax benefits, other deductions determined by BOU are deducted in arriving at
Tier 1 capital.

«  Tier 2 capital (Supplementary capital): Revaluation reserves and general provisions,
Qualifying Tier 2 Capital is limited to 100% Tier 1 Capital.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of four risk weights classified
according to the nature of and reflecting an estimate of the credit risk associated with each asset
and counterparty. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarizes the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank at
31 December2018:

Core Capital (Tier 1) Motes 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
Share Capital 25,000,000 25,000,000
Retained earnings 298,176,555 246,577,171
Investment in subsidiary 16 {40,000) {40,000)
Deferred income tax assets 17 (3,420,987) =
Intangible assets i8 (121,845) (14,245)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (3,653) {13,891)
Total Tier 1 Capital 319,590,070 271,509,035
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)
Unencumbered general provisions
(regulatory) 26 7,400,248 6,043,364
Revaluation reserve 27 0,168,377 9,650,923
Total Tier 2 Capital 16,568,625 15,694,287
Total Capital (Tier 1+Tier 2) 336,158,695 287,203,322
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management {continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Assets

Motes, coins & other cash assets

Balances with Bank of Uganda

Repurchase agreements with Bank of Uganda
Government securities

Placements with |ocal Banks

Placements with foreign Banks

Amount due from overseas branch of parent
bank- BOB, Kenya

Due from Banking institutions within Uganda
Due from Banking institutions outside Uganda
Due from foreign related Banking institutions
outside Uganda

Loans and advances to customers {Excluding
loans secured by 100% cash margin)*
Outstanding balance fully secured by FOR/SDR
Investment in subsidiary

Praoperty and equipment

Current tax receivable

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax

Other assets

Sub total
Off-balance sheet items

Contingents secured by cash collateral

Direct credit substitutes (guarantees and
acceptances)

Transaction related (performance bonds and
standbys)

Documentary Credits (trade related and self-
liquidating)

Other Commitments (unused formal facilities)

Sub total

Total risk-weighted assets

Weighted items with Market risk
Weighted items with Counter party credit risk

Total Risk Weighted items

MNominal
Amount

16,686,348
137,575,661
10,000,000
508,317,338
21,294,247
111,748,941

79.731
8,686,269
72,098 487

36,771,164

661,609,880
78,414,882
40,000
18,090,204
8,491,215
121,845
3,420,987
3,241,524

1,696,688,723

28,631,405
38,796,659
11,900,110

50,965,186
145,961,162

276,254,522

Risk
weight

0%
0%
0%
0%
20%
100%

100%:
20%,
50%

100%

0%
100%
50%

20%
50%

Risk weighted
amounts

4,258,849
111,748,941

79,731
1,737,254
36,045,244

36,771,164

661,609,880

18,090,204
8,491,215

3,241,524

882,078,006

38,796,659
5,950,055

10,193,037
72,980,581

127,920,332

__1,009,998,338

28,399%
0

1,010,026,737
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
(e) Capital Management (continued)

On balance sheet
Off Balance sheet

Total risk-weighted assets

Tier 1 Capital
Total Capital (Tier 1+Tier 2)

Capital Ratio

Tier 1 = Minimum 10%@
Tier 14Tier 2 = Minimum 12%

@ As per Financial Institutions (Capital
Adequacy Reguirements) Regulations, 2018

*Lopans and advances to customers comprises of:
Gross Loans and advances
Less : Interest in suspense

Less : Regulatory Specific Provision {Note 26)
Less : Cash backed facilities

*Weighted items for market risk

Total minimum capital required for market risk (1)

Multiplier (2)
Weighted items with market risk (1x2)

Year ended 21 December 2017

Assets

Motes, coins & other cash assets

Balances with Bank of Uganda

Repurchase agreements with Bank of Uganda
Government securities

Placements with local Banks

Placements with foreign Banks

Placements with foreign Banks - Unrated
Due from Banking institutions within Uganda
e from Banking institutions outside Uganda

Due from foreign related Banking institutions
outside Uganda

Loans and advances to customers (Excluding
loans secured by 100% cash margin)
Outstanding balance fully secured by FDR/SDR
Investment in subsidiary

Property and equipment

Current tax receivable

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax

Other assets

2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
882,078,006 758,489,252
127,920,332 97,752,135
1,009,998,338 B56,241,387
319,590,070 271,509,035
336,158,695 287 203@22
31.64% 31.71%
33.268% 33.54%
764,105,193
(639,771)
(23,440,660
(78,414 8BB2)
661,609,880
3,408
B8.33
28,399
Risk weighted
MNominal Risk
Amount weight amounts
17,323,065 0% &
102,110,300 0% "
86,717,078 0% -
500,406,256 0% -
8,004,356 20% 1,600,871
155,894,854 100% 155,894,854
1,168,303 20% 233,661
3.701.485 500 1.850.743
19,835,816 100% 19,835,816
555,400, 78 100% 555,400,780
48,935,650 05 =
40,000 0% -
19,019,401 100% 19,019,401
1,356,493 100% 1,356,493
14,245 0% =
= D% =
3,296,633 100% 3,296,633
1,523,224.715 758,489,252
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(e} Capital Management (continued)

Off-balance sheet items

Contingents secured by cash collateral 25,528,944 (0% #
Direct credit substitutes (guarantees and

acceptances) 34,607,248 100% 34,607,248
Transaction related {performance bonds and

standbys) 14,230,150 S50% 7,115,075
Documentary Credits (trade related and self

liquidating) 25,752,284 20% 5,152,457
Other Commitments (unused formal Facilitles) 101,754,710 S0% 50,877, 355

Sub total

Total risk-weighted assets

0n halance sheet

101,BE3,336

2018
Shs'000

882,078,006

97,752,135

856,241,387

2017
Shs'000

758,489,252

Off Balance sheet 127,920,332 97,752,135
1,009,998,

Total risk-weighted assets 338 B56,241,387

Tier 1 Capital 319,590,070 271,509,035

Total Capital {Tier 1+Tier 2) 336,158,695 287,203,322

Capital Ratio

Tier 1 - Minimum 10% @ 31.64% 31.71%

Tier 1 4+ Tier 2 - Minimum - 129% 33.28%

@ As per Financial Institutions (Capital
Adequacy Requirements) Regulations, 2018

(f} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

33.54%

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there Is no observable
market price requires the use of valuation technigues as described in Note 2 of these financial
statements. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency,
fair value Is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity,
concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the
specific instrument.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had treasury bills and treasury bonds that are hel sale and are
measured at fair value, Available-for-sale treasury bills and treasury bonds® fair values are derived
from discounting future cash flows. The discounting rates used for the valuation of treasury bills
and bonds are derived from observable market data,

The information below shows the classification of financial instruments held at fair value into the
valuation hierarchy set out below for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, The fair values
are grouped into three levels as mentioned in Note 2.1 of these financials, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable,

Consolidated and Separate

2018 2017
Shs’ 000 Shs 000

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI) - Level 2 501,167,838 487,743,741
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers into and out of
Level 2 fair value measurements.

Available-for-sale financial assets include only Government securities classified as available-for-
sale are measured at fair value with changes through Other Comprehensive income, The fair value
is estimated using guoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics in the secondary market.

The estimated fair value of available-for-sale Government securities is closely approximated using
simple discounted cash flow models and extrapolation methods using known, observable yields
guoted in the secondary market based on instruments with similar credit and maturity
characteristics,

The fair values of the Bank’s other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised
cost approximate the respective carrying amounts, due to the generally short periods to contractual
re-pricing or maturity dates as set out in note 4b (Liquidity risk).

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In determining the fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value, the bank uses prices for
similar instruments for which market observable prices exist. The assumptions and inputs used in
valuation technigues include risk free and benchmark interest rates, expected price volatilities and
correlations,

31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs"000 Shs'000

Debt Securities measured

at FVOCI:

Government securities

measured at FVOCI g 501,167,838 - 501,167,838
Total assets - 501,167,838 - 501,167,838
31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available —for -sale

financial assets:

Government securities =

available-for-sale 487,743,741 487,743,741
Total Assets - 487,743,741 - 487,743,741

There were no transfers in and out of different levels of fair value hierarchy.
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out the carrying values of financial instruments not measured at fair value

and analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement

is categorised as at 31 December 2018,

Assets
Cash and Balances with Bank
of Uganda

Loans and advances to banks
Amounts due from overseas
branches of parent company
Deposits and balances due
from other institutions

Other assets

Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Customer deposits

Other labilities

Retirement benefit obligation

31 December 2017

Assets
Cash and Balances with Bank
of Uganda

Loans and advances to banks
Amounts due from overseas
branches of parent company
Deposits and balances due
from other institutions

Other assets

Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation

Level 1 Level 2

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3

164,394,812
133,043,187

36,850,895

80,784,756
3,476,544

11,188,328
1,301,810,777
25,058,782
1,413,064

Level 3

206,150,443
163,899,210

19,835,816

4,209,112
3,476,050

19,248,876
1,166,245,602
16,016,622
1,415,443

Total fair
values

164,394,812
133,043,187

36,850,895

80,784,756
3,476,544

11,188,328
1,301,810,777
25,058,782
1,413,064

Total
fair values

206,150,443
163,899,210

19,835,816

4,909,112
3,476,050

19,248,876
1,166,245,602
16,016,622
1,415,443
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

INTEREST INCOME

Income from treasury bills

Income from treasury bonds

Income from loans and advances
Income earned from placements and
repurchase agreements ("repos”)

INTEREST EXPENSE
Current and Demand deposits
Savings accounts

Time deposits
Interbank borrowings

NOM INTEREST INCOME

Fees and commission income

Realised foreign exchange gain on trading book 3,570,544

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on trading book

Profit on sale of investments
Recoveries in bad debts writken off
Other income

NOM INTEREST EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense (Note 9)
Advertising

Auditor's remuneration

= current year

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Repairs and maintenance
Directors’ emoluments as executives

Administration and service level agreement fees 1,316,093

Consulting and professional fees
Rent and rates

General expenses

Bad debts written off

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
18,395,916 31,050,880 18,395,916 31,050,880
45,101,803 34,021,375 45,101,803 34,021,375
86,384,915 74,121,421 86,384,915 74,121,421
& 858,864 9,004,067 8,858 864 Q. 004,067
158,741,498 148,197,743 158,741,498 148,197,743
94,048 59,130 94,048 59,130
2,477,617 2,244,343 2,477,617 2,244,343
46,213,419 55,916,728 46,243,549 55,947,746
454 566 314,655 454,566 314,655
49,239,650 58,534,656 49,269,780 58,565,874
13,937,740 14,592,074 13,937,740 14,592,074
2,508,905 3,570,544 2,508,905
3,653 13,891 3,653 13,891
2,293,403 2,307,361 2,293,403 2,307,361
15,292,586 6,288,298 15,292,585 6,268,298
2,127,629 125,757 1,980,819 2,203
37,225,555 25,836,286 37,078,744 25,712,732
13,482,187 14,854,658 13,455,094 14,827,564
817,701 368,542 817,701 368,542
326,153 260,504 318,733 253,224
1,450,843 1,403,980 1,450,561 1,403,643
684,955 919,718 654,955 919,718
178,951 265,671 178,951 265,671
765,757 1,316,093 765,757
385,803 185,795 385,803 185,795
2,294,141 2,189,872 2,204,142 2,169,872
10,031,055 7,754,933 9,977,492 7,690,583
24,021,093 23,475,184 24,021,093 23,475,184
54,988,975 52,444,614 54,900,618 52,345,553
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

9. EMPLOYEE BEMNEFITS EXPENSE

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

Salaries and wages 12,164,779 12,613,858 12,137,685 12,586,764
Other benefits 339,083 651,259 339,083 651,259
Employment benefits” expenses 978,326 1,589,541 978,326 1,589,541

13,482,188 14,854,658 13,455,094 14,827,564

10(a). INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax - current year charge 2,967,148 437,726 2,941,168 421,433
Deferred income tax - charge/(credit) (Note 17) 2,623,440 437,064 2,623,470 437,150
Withhalding tax {"WHT") on investment income 13,614,551 13,876,811 13,614,551 13,876,811

19,205,139 14,751,601 159,179,189 14,735,394

The tax on the profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory Income tax rate as follows:

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Profit before income tax 92,688,598 64,157,224 92,600,013 64,101,713
Tax applicable in Uganda - 30% 27,806,579 19,247,167 27,780,004 19,230,514

Tax effect of:

- Final tax (WHT) on investment income* 13,614,551 13,876,E11 13,614,551 13,876,811
- Income not subject to tax** (19,049,316} (19,521,677) (19,049,316) (19,521,677}
- Other timing differences 2,610,000 - 2,610,000 -
-  Expenses not deductible for tax purposes®*(5,776,676) 1,149,300 [5,776,050) 1,149,747

Income tax expense 19,205,139 14,751,601 19,179,189 14,735,395

Effective tax rate 21% 23% 21% 23%

*Withhelding tax, which is currently at 20% on interest income from government securities {Treasury bills
and Government bonds), Is treated as final tax.

** Income not subject to tax relates to income earmed on government securities that had already had
withhelding tax as a final tax,

***These expenses consist of low value transactions not deductible in determining taxable loss in accordance
with the Ugandan Income Tax Act,
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BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

10(b}) MOVEMENT IN THE CURRENT INCOME TAX RECOVERABLE

11.

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
At 1 January 1,385,752 753,478 1,356,493 F27,926
Current year tax charge (16,581,699) (14,314,537} (16,555,719} (14,79B8,244)
Final tax on Investment income 13,614,551 13,876,811 13,614,551 13,876,811
Tax paid 10,093,679 1,070,000 10,075,891 1,050,000
At 31 December 8,512,282 1,385,752 8,491,216 1,356,493
CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF UGANDA
Motes and Coins 16,819,151 17,323,065 16,686,348 17,323,065
Balances with Bank of Uganda 137,575,661 102,110,300 137,575,661 102,110,300
154,394,812 119,433,365 154,262,009 119,433,365
Analysed as:
Restricted cash reserves (mandatory deposits) 99,470,000 89,662,000 99,470,000 89,662,000
Unrestricted cash and cash eguivalents 54,924 812 29,771,365 54,792,009 29,771,365
154,394,812 119,433,365 154,262,009 119,433,365
Repurchase agreements (Repos)
Repos with Bank of Uganda 10,000,000 86,717,078 10,000,000 86,717,078
Total cash and balances with Bank of Uganda 164,394,812 206,150,443 164,262,009 206,150,443

Balances with Bank of Uganda include the mandatory deposits, which are advised fortnightly by the Central
Bank based on the deposit balances held for the past two weeks, The amount advised includes cash and
balances held with Bank of Uganda and this amount not avallable to finance the day-to-day activities of the
Bank. Balances in excess of the advised amount is however available to finance the Banks investment activities,

As at 31 December 2018, the mandatory deposits were 8% of total deposits (2017: 8% of total deposits).

Repurchase agreements (repo) are borrowings between the Bank and Bank of Uganda ranging from one to
three months at market interest rates, As at reporting date, the accrued interest receivable on the repurchase
agreement with Bank of Uganda amounted to Shs 19 Million (2017: Shs 717 Million) and this has been included

together with principal balance advanced.



BANK OF BARODA (UGANDA) LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
128 GOVERNMENT SECURITIES Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
A) Fair Value Through OCI
- Treasury bills for 91 days - 365 days 200,026,568 181,263,340 200,026,568 181,263,340
- Treasury bonds after 91 days 288,349,972 293,992,948 288,349,972 293,992,948
- Interest receivable 12,791,298 12,487 453 12,791,298 12,487,453
501,167,838 487,743,741 501,167,838 487,743,741
B) Amortised Cost
- B) Treasury bonds after 1 year 7,149,500 12,662,515 7,149,500 12,662,515
7,149,500 12,662,515 7,149,500 12,662,515
Government securities (A+B) 508,317,338 500,406,256 508,317,338 500,406,256

The movement in investment securities available-for-sale during the year is summarised as follows;

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

AL start of year 487,743,741 424,893,596 487,743,741 424,893,596
Additions 19,579,338 39,161,641 19,579,338 39,161,641
Interest receivable 12,791,298 12,487,453 12,791,298 12,487,453
Net gain in Fair Value Through OCI {18,946,539) 11,201,051 (18,946,539) 11,201,051
-01,167,838 487,743,741 501,167,838 487,743,741

Break down of net gain in fair value for AFS

Gain (27,066,483) 13,720,667 (27,066,483) 13,720,667
Deferred tax 8,119,945  (2,519,616) 8,119,945 (2,519,616}
(18,946,538) 11,201,051 (18,946.538) 11,201,051

Treasury bills and bonds are debt securities jssued by the Bank of Uganda. The Bank decides at inception
whether to classify the securities under the amortised cost or fair value portfolio. These debt securities are
categorised as financial assets which are carried at amortised cost and fair value which are fair valued with
aainsflosses through Other Comprehensive Income. The Bank has not reclassified any financial assets from
cost or amortised to fair value, or from falr value to cost or amortised cost during the current or prior year.
Gains from sale of available-for-sale investments has been reported under Note 7. There were no gains or
losses realised on the disposal of assets recognised under amortised cost in 2018 and 2017, as all the financial
assats were disposed of at their redemption date,

The weighted average effective interest rate on treasury bonds as at 2018 was 13.77% (2017: 14.81%) and
on treasury bills was 10.77% (2017: 11.44%),

As at the reporting date, the Bank pledged treasury bills of 91 days to Shs 1,714 million (2017: Shs 1,396

million) with Bank of Uganda as collateral for the repurchase agreements and other balances with Bank of
Uganda, These securties continued to be reported under Government securities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

12b. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with local Banks
Placements with foreign Banks

2018
Shs'000

21,294,246
111,748,941

Consolidated

2017
Shs'000

8,004,356
155,894,854

2018
Shs'000

21,294,246
111,748,941

Separate

2017
Shs'000

8,004,356
155,894, 854

133,043,187

163,899,210

133,043,187

163,899,210

The weighted average effective rate of interest on local placements as at 31 December 2018 was 9.12% and
foreign placements 1.70% (2017 local placements 10.04% and foreign placements 1.31%).

13. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Overdrafts
Demand and term loans
Individual & Personal loans

Gross loans and advances
Less: Provision for
Impairment (Individual)

(6,916,354)

Less: Provision for impairment (Portfolio) -

(13,543,265)

(6,916,354)

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
409,492,924 348,973,615 409,492,924 348,973,615
354,250,850 289,684,594 354,250,850 289,684,594
361,419 455,802 361,419 455,802
764,105,193 639,114,011 764,105,193 639,114,011

(13,543,265)

Movements in provisions for impairment of loans and advances are as follows:

a) Stage 3
AL 1 January
Day one adjustment IFRS 2

Additional provision in the year

Recoveries/uparadation
Write offs during the year

At 31 December
b) Stage 1 and 2

At 1 January
Day one adjustment IFRS 9

Additional provision in the year

At 31 December
Total Impairment provisions

Charge to profit or loss

MNet (credit)/ charge to the profit or loss (2,209,481) (1,102,665)

(8,896,321) - (8,996,321)
757,188,839 616,574,425 757,188,838 616,574,425
13,543,265 17,741,599 13,543,265 17,741,599
(9,124,019) - (9,124,019) -
2,085,005 10,065,649 2,085,095 10,065,649
(644,559)  (6,070,840) (644,559)  (6,070,840)
(3,773,787) (8,193,143) (3,773,787) (8,193,143
2,085,005 13,543,265 2,085,095 13,543,265
8,096,321 5900,653 8,996,321 5,900,653
(4,288,833) - (4,288,833) 5
123,770 3,095,668 123,770 3,095,668
4,831,258 8,996,321 4,831,259 8,996,321
6,916,353 22,539,586 6,916,354 22,539,586
(2,209,481)  (1,102,665)
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13. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
All impaired loans have been written down to their estimated recoverable amount. The aggregate carrying
amount of impaired loans At 31 December 2018 was Shs 16.4 Billion {2017 Shs 35.5 Billion) on which
provision of Shs 6.92 Billion (2017: Shs 13.5 Billion),
Advances to customers include loans to employees of Shs 361 Million (2017: Shs 456 Million). The
welghted average effective interest rate on local currency loans and advances to customers as at 2018
was 19.73% (2017: 17.93%) and B.95% (2017: 8.36%) for forelgn currency loans and advances.

Gross carrying amount for customer loans and advances

iR ___Stagel  Stage2  Stage3 Total
In Ushs'000 Collective Collective
Gross Carrying amount as at 1
January 2018 541,172,888 62,423.919 35,517,203 639,114,011
MNew assets ariginated or purchased 226,289,329 25,560,496 45 322 251,895,147
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding
write offs) (73,954,088) (21530,653)  (31.419.224) (126,903,965)
Transfers:
Transfers in (out) of stage 1 (38,182,278) 27,504 304 10,677,974 -
Transfers in (out) of stage 2 15,667,150 (21,268,959) 5,601,809 -
Transfers in (out) of stage 3 4 025,755 - (4,025,755) -
Write —offs/reversals
At 31 December 2018 675,018,756 72,689,107 16,397,329 764,105,193
ECLs for customer loans and advances
o  _Stage 1 _Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
In Ushs'000 Collective Collective
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018
under IFRS © 4,569,236 138,253 4,418 346 9,125,835
New assets originated or purchased 1,686,269 51,415 1,358,971 3,096,655
ARSRES DRIRCOOTISE0-OF (R LRYCIUGING (908,167) (404,407) (3,993,562)  (5,306,136)
wiite offs)
Transfers:
Transfers in (out) of stage 1 (1,068 461) 692,813 375,649 -
Transfers in (out) of stage 2 - " = =
Transfers fn (out) of stage 3 74,309 - (74,309) -
Write —offs/revercals
At 31 December 2018 4,353,186 478,073 2,085,095 6,916,354

An analysis of the allowance for impairment losses under IAS 39 for loans and advances for year ended 31
December 2017 is as follows;

Impairment under IAS 39 2 o __ Dec2017
| Lshs 000
Balance, beginning of period/year | 23,642,252
Impairment charge for the period/year | (1,10,666)
Balance, end of period/year | 22,539,586
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13b CREDIT LOSS EXPENSE

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the income
statement:

Off balance
- ) . _:._ﬂans and advances sheet -
31 December 2018 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Total

In Shs000 Collective Collective Individual Collective

AL start of the year. 4,569,236 138,253 4,418,346 5,139,240 14,265,075

C”a"gﬂ”“’efgsg“ profit and (216,050) 339,820 (2,333,252) 1+299.312 (950,170)
6,398,552

At end of year 4,353,186 478,073 2,085,094 13,832,705

The table below shows the impairment charges recorded In the income statement under IAS 39 during 2017:

31 December 2017

In Shs 000 , Specific Collective Total

At start of the year 17,741,599 5,800,653 23,642,252
Charge/Cradit (4.198,333) 3,095,668 (1,102,655)
At end of year . 13,543,265 8,996,321 22,539,586

IFRS Transition adjustment {Bank)

As at 31 Dec 2017 Day one impairment Movement

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Stage 1 - 4,569,236 (4,569,236)
Stage 2 - 138,253 {138,253)
Portfolio B,996,321 - 8,996,321
Stage 3 13,543,265 4,418,346 9,124,919
Off balance sheet - 5,139,240 (5,139,240)
Total 22,539 586 14,265,075 8,274,510

The movement of Shs 8.27 billion has been taken as an adjustment to the Statement of Changes in Equity in
the to increase the retained earnings.
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14. DEPOSITS DUE FROM/ (TO) OVERSEAS BRANCHES OF PARENT COMPANY

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Bank of Baroda, London - GBP 13,589,276 14,764,430 13,589,276 14,764,430
Bank of Baroda, Mairobi - Kshs 79,731 22,141 79,731 22,141
Bank of Baroda, Mumbai - INR (90,297) 81,609 (90,297) B1,609
Bank of Baroda, Brussels - Euro 4,313,153 4,181,029 4,313,153 4,181,029
Bank of Baroda, New York - US Dollar 18,959,032 786,607 18,959,032 786,607
36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835,816

Classified as;
Deposits due from overseas branches 36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835 B16
Deposits to from overseas branches m = - =
36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835,816

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits due from overseas branches of parent company for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was 1.71% (2017: 0.79%).

The carrying amounts of the deposits due to overseas branches of parent company are denominated in the
following currencies:

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Kenya Shilling 79,731 22,141 79,731 22,141
Us Dollar 18,959,032 786,607 18,959,032 786,607
Euro 4,313,153 4,181,029 4,313,153 4,181,029
Indian Rupees (90,297) 81,609 (90,297) 81,609
Great Britain Pound 13,589,276 14,764,430 13,589,276 14,764,430
36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835,816

15. OTHER ASSETS

Clearing account 10,182 174,601 10,182 174,601
Others 3,466,362 3,301,449 3,231,342 3,301,449
3,476,544 3,476,050 3,241,524 3,476,050
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

17,

The composition of the Group is as follows:

Country of
Incorporation 2018
Subsidiary %
Baroda Capital
Markets (Uganda) Limited Uganda 100

Holding

2017
%o

100

2018
Shs'000

40,000

Company

2017
Shs'000

40,000

Baroda Capital Markets (U) Limited (the subsidiary) is principally engaged in brokerage of securities and
shares traded on the Uganda Securities Exchange. The subsidiary is incorporated in Uganda under the
Companies Act as a limited liability company and is domiciled in Uganda.

The Bank owns 100% equity shares (2017: 100% equity shares) of Baroda Capital Markets (U) Limited.
The Bank has the power to appoint and remove the majority of the Board of Directors of the subsidiary.
The Board of Directors of the subsidiary based on simple majority votes determines the relevant activities
of the subsidiary. The Directors of the Bank have thus concluded that the Bank has control over the
subsidiary and therefore, it has been consolidated In these financial statements,

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted income tax rate of 30% (2017: 30%). The
movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

At 1 January (2,281,634) 2,055,050 (2,282,293) 2,055,402

(Charge)/credit to:

- Statement of profit or loss (2,623,440) (437,064) (2,623,470) (437,151)
- Statement of other comprehensive

income 8,123,780 (2,518,692) 8,119,945 (2,519,616)

- Statement of changes in equity 206,805  (1,380,928) 206,805 (1,380,528)

At 31 December 3,425,511 3,420,987 (2,282,293)

{2,281,634)
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17. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The deferred income tax asset and liability and deferred income tax charge/(credit) in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
{("OCI") are attributable to the following items:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Consclidated

Accelerated tax depreciation

Property revaluations

Aliowances for Loan losses

Other provisions and timing differences
Fair value gains on AFS assets!

Met deferred income tax asset/ (liability)

Separate

Accelerated tax depreciation

Property revaluations

Allowances for Loan losses

Other provisions and timing differences
Falr value gains on AFS assets’

Met deferred income tax asset/ (liability)

Year ended 31 December 2017
Consolidated

Accelerated tax depreciation
Property revaluations

Allowances for Loan losses

Other provisions and timing differences
Fair value gains on AFS assets!

Separate

Accelerated tax depreciation

Property revaluations

Allowances for Loan losses

Other provisions and timing differences
Fair value gains on AFS assets!

Met deferred income tax asset

Credited to
At start of year profit or loss Credited to OCI Charge to Equity At end of year
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs"000
(270,114) 147,749 . - (122,365)
(4,136,109) 3 = 206,805 (3,929,304)
6,761,876 (2,767,408 - - 3,994,472
421,750 (3,785) - - 417,965
(5,059,037) = 8,123,780 = 3,064,743
!2‘231‘5341 !ﬁﬁzaimt 8,123,780 206,805 3,425,511_
(269,820} 147,715 - - (122,101}
(4,136,109) = = 206,805 (3,929,304)
8,761,876 (2,767,404) - - 3,994,472
428,800 (3,785} - - 425,015
(5,067 040) = B,119.945 = 3,052,905
!ZHHZ‘ZH‘EI 12‘523‘4?{!! _!‘élm 206,805 3,420,987
[435,614) 165,500 . 4 (270,114}
{4,353,799) - - 217,690 (4,136,109)
5,948,576 B13,300 % = 6,761,876
1,837,614 (1,415,864) = g 421,750
(941,727} = [2,518,692) {1,598,618) (5,059,037)
EHEEE‘DSD ‘ﬂ?IDE‘It EEISIBIEBZI {1,380,928) {1,1&1:53‘1
[435,233) 165,413 B (269,820}
(4,353,799) - - 217,690 (4,136,109)
5,943,576 813,300 - 6,751,876
1,844 564 {1,415,864) - - 428,800
(948,806} = 12.519.616) (1,598,618} (5,067,040)
2,055,402 {(437,151) (2,519,616) jllﬂﬂﬂiglﬂi lE‘ZBEIlBZI

Deferred tax asset amounting to Shs 2,825 million{Group) and 3,420 millien{company) has been recognised as it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which a deductiblz temporary difference can be utilised when there are sufficient appropriate taxable temporary

differences that are expected to reverse in the appropriate period.
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Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 5hs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
18, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
At start of year 137,236 132,471 137,236 132,471
Additions 159,660 4,765 159,660 4,765
At end of year 296,896 137,236 296,896 137,236
Amortisation
At start of year 122,990 105,536 122,990 105,536
Charge for the year 52,061 17,455 52,060 17,455
At end of year 175,051 122,991 175,051 122,891
Net baok value 121,845 14,245 121,845 14,245
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19. PROPERTY AND EQUIFMENT

Consolidated
Year ended 31 December 2018 Freehold fixtures maotor IT
Land Buildings and fittings vehicles equipment Total

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Opening net book amount 8,700,000 6,342,638 2,685,006 212,441 1,081,354 19,021,439
Additions - - 93,113 - 376,193 469,306
Write offs = - = - - B
Transfer to branches - - = & {13,100) {13,100)
Transfer from branches = i = 8 13,100 13,100
Depreciation charge - (653,362) (338,320) (42,488) (364,612) (1,398,782)
Closing net book amount 8,700,000 5,689,276 2,439,799 169,953 1,092,935 18,091,963
At 31 December 2018
Cost or valuation 8,700,000 13,067,409 7,103,568 1,153,180 5,303,219 35,327,376
Accumulated depreciation - (7,378,133) (4,663,769) (983,227) (4,210,284) (17,235,413)
MNet book Value 8,700,000 5,689,276 2,439,799 169,953 1,092,935 18,091,963
Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net bock amount 8,700,000 6,996,000 2,874,740 265,551 452,527 19,288,818
Additions 219,785 = 936,392 1,156,177
Write offs - - (37,032) - - {37,032)
Transfers to branches . - (29,274) - 2,524 (26,750)
Transfers from branches - - 26,750 - - 26,750
Depreciation charge - {653,362) {369,963) {53,110} (310,089) (1,386,524)
Closing net book amount 8,700,000 6,342,638 2,685,006 212,441 1,081,354 19,021,439
At 31 December 2017
Cost or valuation 8,700,000 13,067,408 7,006,095 1,153,181 4,922,691 34,849 375
Accumulated depreciation - (6,724,770 (4,321,089} (940, 740) (3,841,337) (15,B27.936)
MNet book Value &,700,000 6,342,638 2,685,006 212,441 1,081,354 19,021,439
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19,

20,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The useful lives used in the calculation of depreciation have been disclosed in Note 2.11 of the
Significant accounting policies. The Group re-assasses the useful lives and residual values of items
of property and equipment at the end of each reporting pericd, In line with the accounting policy
and IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment. These assessments are based on historic analysis,
benchmarking, and the latest available and reliable information,

The Group s freehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subseguent
impairment losses, The fair value measurements of the Group s freehold land and buildings as at
31 December 2017 were performed by Messers Ideal Surveyors, Valuers and Real Estate
Management Consultants, independent valuers not related to the group. Messers Ideal Surveyors,
Valuers and Real Estate Management Consultants of the Institute of Valuers of Uganda, and they
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fiar value measurement of properties
in the relevant locations.

The fair value of the freehold land and bullding was determined based on the market comparable
approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties within Kampala.

The valuers used the depreciation replacement cost method of valuation and performed a direct
comparison method to analyse the current undeveloped land value,

The Directars of the Group, after seeking legal advice, have shown the freehold land as a separate
class of assets as the Group has rights to this land and was granted the freehold land at inception.
The value of the freehold land has been determined after valuation of both the land and bulldings.
In the prior years, the value of the land and building were shown together,

Details of the Group’ s freehold land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting report are as follows;

Fair value as
Consolidated and Separate Level 2 at 31/12/18
Freehold land 8,700,000 B,700,000
Building 6,342,638 6,342,638

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Had the Group’ s freehold land and buildings {other than land and buildings classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group) been measured on a historical cost basis, their carrying amount
would be as follows.

Carrying value Carrying value

2018 2017
Consolidated and Separate Shs'000 Shs'000
Freehold land 8,700,000 8,700,000
Building 1,199,145 1,262,258

As at the reporting date, there were no assets that were pledged as collateral for borrowings or
other financing arrangements (2017: Mone).

Consolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits due to other Banks within 90 days 8,001,808 14,351,864 8,001,808 14,351,864
Bank of Uganda: Agricultural Credit Facility 3,186,520 4,897,012 3,186,520 4,897,012

11,188,328 19,248,876 11,188,328 19,248,876
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20,

21.

22,

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Government of Uganda through Bank of Uganda set up an Agricultural Credit Facility scheme
for supporting agricultural expansion and modernisation in partnership with commercial Banks. all
eligible Bank customers receive 50% financing from the Government of Uganda while the remaining
50% Is provided by the Bank. The outstanding halance as at 31 December 2018 was Shs 3,186
milllon (2017: Shs 4,897 million).

The weighted average effective rate of interest on foreign Bank borrowings for the year ended 2018
was 1.56% (2017: 1.68% ). The weighted average effective rate of interest on local Bank borrowings

for the year ended 2017 was 7.68% (2017: 7.55%).

Consaolidated Separate

2018 2017 2018 2017

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs"000 Shs'000
Current and demand deposits 214,290,661 216,626,253 214,365,426 216,766,820
Savings deposits 202,394,590 179,236,324 202,394,590 179,236,324
Time deposits BB5,125,526 770,383,025 8B5,409,362 770,683,398

1,301,810,777

1,166,245,602

1,302,169,378

1,166,686,542

Analysis of customer deposits by maturity:

- Payable within 90 days 326,768,819 326,768,819 326,768,819 326,768,819
- Payable after 90 days and

within one year 635,348,769 635,348,769 635,348,769 635,348,769
- Payable after one year 339,693,189 204,128,014 340,051,790 204,568,954

1,301,B10,777 1,166,245,602

1,302,169,378

1,166,686,542

The weighted average effective interest rate on interest bearing current and savings deposits for
the year ended 2018 was 0.61% (2017: 0.69%) and 5.22% (2017: 7.42%) on time deposits.

Cansolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 She"000 Shs"000
DEPOSITS AND BALANCES DUE TO OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Due to local Banking Institutions  BO, 784,756 4,909,112 80,784,757 4,869,788
Total 80,784,756 4,909,112 BO,784,757 4,869,788
Maturity analysed as; o
Maturity less than 90 days B0,784,756 4,909,112 80,784,757 4,869,788
Maturity of 91 to 180 days = 8 = &
80,784,756 4,909,112 BO,784,757 4,869,788
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Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

23, OTHER LIABILITIES

Unearned |nterest 7,308,253 7,289,024 7,308,253 7,289,024
Bills payable 352,425 183,333 352,425 183,333
Uncleared effects [net) BO1,710 430,610 801,710 430,610
Others*® 10,197,843 8,113,655 10,074,905 7,986,004
Provision Off balance sheet 6,398,551 = 6,398,551 B
25,058,782 16,016,622 24,935 B44 15,888,971

*Included in Others are are cash margin deposits for |etters of credit and financial guarantees
amounting to Shs 530 million (2017: Shs 632 million).

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
24, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Long service awards 1,413,064 1,415,443 1,413,064 1,415,443
Movements for the year:
At 1 January 1,415,444 1,134,458 1,415,444 1,134,458
Additional provision made
during the year 147,620 505,222 147,620 505,222
Awards paid (150,000) (224,236) (150,000) (224,236)
AL 31 December 1,413,064 1,415 444 1,413,064 1,415 444

The retirement benefit obligations relate to long service awards for staff who have served over a
certain number of years with the Bank. The provision is computed at 75% of the monthly salary
last drawn by each employee multiplied by each completed year of service, subject to eligibility

under the terms and conditions of the scheme,

25, SHARE CAPITAL

Consolidated and Separate

As at start and end of year

Mumber

Par value

of ordinary of ordinary

Shares'000

2,500,000

shares

10 25,000,000

Total
Shs'000

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,500 million (2017: 2,500 million) with a par
value of Shs 10 per share. All Issued shares are fully paid,
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Consolidated Separate
2018 207 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'D00 Shs'000
26. REGULATORY GENERAL CREDIT RISK RESERVE
Provisions as per FIA 2004
Specific provision 23,440,660 34,635,473 23,440,660 34,635,473
General provisions 7,400,248 6,043,364 7,400,248 6,043,364
30,840,908 40,678,837 30,840,308 40,678,837
Impairment assessment
as per IFRS 9 (Note 13)
Individual impairment provisions 6,916,354 13,543,265 6,916,354 13,543,265
Portfolio impairment provisions = B,996,321 - 8,996,321
6,916,354 22,539,586 6,916,354 22,539,586
Regulatory Credit Risk Reserve
At 31 December 23,924,554 18,139,251 23,924,554 18,139,251
Movement in Credit risk reserves;
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings 5,785,302 (3,370,623) 5,785,302 (3,370,623)

The statutory credit risk reserve represents amounts by which provisions for impairments of loans
and advances, determined in accordance with the Financial Institutions Act (FIA) exceed those
determined in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The requlatory reserve
represents an apprepriation from retained earnings to comply with Bank of Uganda's Prudential
Regulations in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy. The reserve is non-distributable.

Separate 2018
2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
27, REVALUATION RESERVE
At start of year 9,650,923

Transfer of excess depreciation on revaluation {689,351)
Deferred tax on transfer of excess depreciation 206,805

Consolidated
2017 2018

Shs'000 Shs'000

10,158,866 9,650,923 10,158,866
(725,633) (689,351) (725,633)
217,690 206,805 217,690

At end of year 9,168,377

9,650,923 9,16B,377 9,650,923

Revaluation reserves relate to valuations of Land and Buildings carried out by professional
independent valuers. Excess depreciation on revaluation is transferred from to retained earnings,
net of deferred tax on a year to year basis. The reserve is non- distributable.
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28. PROPOSED DIVIDEND

29,

At the annual general meeting to be held in 2019, a dividend of Shs 10 per share amounting to Shs
25 Billion in total Is to be proposed. (2017: total dividend per share of Shg 7.50 amounting to Shs
18.75 Billion}. The dividend is at 100% of paid up share capital of Shs 25,000,000,000 (2017: 75%
of paid up share capital of Shs 25,000,000,000).

The payment of dividends is subject to withhaolding tax at rates depending on the tax status or
residence of the recipient,

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINGENT LIARILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In commaon with other Banks, the Bank conducts business involving acceptances, letters of credit,
guarantees, performance bonds and Indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by
corresponding obligations of third parties. In addition, there are other off-balance sheet financial
instruments including forward contracts for the purchase and sale of foreign currencies, the nominal
amounts for which are not reflected in the statement of financial position.

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs"000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Contingencies securities by
cash coliateral 28,631,405 25,528,944 28,631,405 25,528,944
Direct credit substitutes
(guarantees and acceptances) 38,796,659 34,607,248 38,796,659 34,607,248

Transactions related
(performance bonds and standbys) 11,900,110 14,230,150 11,900,110 14,230,150
Documentary credits
(trade related and self-liquidating) 50,965,186 25,762,284 50,965,186 25,762,284

130,293,360 100,128,626 130,293,360 100,128,626

Commitments

Undrawn formal stand-by facilities,

credit lines and other

commitments to lend 145,961,162 101,754,710 145,961,162 101,754,710

MNature of contingent liabilities

An acceptance is an undertaking by a Bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer. The
Bank expects most acceptances to be presented, and reimbursement by the customer is normally
immediate, Letters of credit commit the Bank to make payments to third parties, on production of
documents, which are subsequently reimbursed by customers, Contingent liabilities are secured by
both cash and property collaterals as disclosed under Note 4(a).

Nature of commitments

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to certain conditions.
Such commitments are normally made for a fixed pericd. The Bank may withdraw from its
contractual obligation for the undrawn portion of agreed overdraft limits by giving reasonable notice
to the customer,

Foreign exchange forward contracts are agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign
currency, usually on a specified future date at an agreed rate.
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2%, OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Bank has entered into commercial leases for premises and equipment, These leases have an
average |ife of between 3 and 5 years with a renewal option included in the contracts. There are

no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December were

as follows;
Consolidated and Separate
2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
Within one year 136,004 949,008
After one year but not more than five years 1,383,395 16,475,833
1,519,399 17,424,841

Operating lease rentals are the amounts payable by the Group in the period after year end to
expiry of the tenancy lease agreements for the various premises sccupied,

The Group does not have any operating leases where it is the lessor. Accordingly, there is no

operating lease commitment for such leases.

The Group does not have any finance leases as at the reporting date.

Consolidated and Separate

2018
Capital Commitments Shs'000
Authorised capital commitments 7,436,000

2017
Shs'000

6,111,000

Capital commitments Include proforma costs for the Data Center, expansian of IT
infrastructure, branch expansions and other overhauls to the Automated Teller Machines

(ATMs) which have been authorised by the Group.

b. Impairment losses on guarantees and other commitments
Impairment losses on guarantees and other commitments

Guarantees and performance bonds:

An analysis of changes in the outstanding exposures and the corresponding ECLs are, as follows
Stage 3

In shs000

S Stige 1 Maped. S
Individual Individual
g;:;mnding exposure as at 1 January 67,265,506 -
Mew Exposures 63,946,922 =

Exposure derecognised ar
matured/lapsed(excluding write-offs) (58,618,449)
Transfers to stage 1 z
Transfers to stage 2 =

Transfers to stage 3 E

Total

67,265,506
63,946,922
(58,618,449)

At 31 December 2018 72,593,979

72,593,979
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29 OFF BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Guarantees and performance bonds continued

In shs'000

ECLs as at 1 January 2018

Mew Exposures |
Exposure derecognised ar
matured/lapsed(excluding write-offs)
Transfers to stage 1 |
Transfers to stage 2

Transfers to stage 3

Amounts written off

At 21 December 2018

Stage 1 Eﬁge 2 Stage 3 Total
| Collective  Collective
3,197,924 - 3,197,024
| 2,760,331 - 2,760,331
(3,102,872) (3,102,872)
_ 2,855,383 - 2,855,383

Loan commitments

An analysls of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs | relation to other

undrawn loan commitments is as follows;

Gross carrying amount of foan commitmeants

In shs'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Collective Collective

Outstanding exposure as at 32,863,219 - - 32,863,219

1 January 2018

MNew Exposures 50,184,164 - 50,184,164

Exposure derecognised or matured (25,348,002) - B (25,348,002)

flapsed (excluding write-offs) 2 - .

Transfars to stage 1 - - -

Transfers to stage 2 - - F:

Transfers to stage 3 T = =

At 31 December 2018 57,699,381 - - 57,699,381

ECLs of Loan commitmeants

In shs'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Collective Collective

ECLs as at 1 January 2018 1,941,316 - - 1,941,316

Mew Exposures 2,942 308 - - 2,942,308

Exposure derecognised or matured/lapsed

{excluding write-offs) {1,340,455) - - {1,340,455)

Transfers to stage 1 - - = -

Transfers to stage 2 2 = . o

Transfers to stage 3 - - -

Amounts written off - - - B

At 31 December 2018 3,543,169 - - 3,543,169
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30, ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolidated Separate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Cash and Balances with Central Banks
(Note 11) 154,394,812 119,433,365 154,262,009 119,433,365
Cash reserve requirement (99,470,000} (89,662,000) (99,470,000) (89,662,000)
Repurchase agreements with
Bank of Uganda 10,000,000 86,717,078 10,000,000 86,717,078
Government securities maturing
within 90 days of the date of
acquisition (Note 12a) 200,026,568 181,263,340 200,026,568 181,263,340
Loans and advances to Banks 133,043,187 163,899,210 133,043,187 163,899,210
Amounts due from Group companies 36,850,895 19,835,816 36,850,895 19,835,816
Deposits and balances due from
other Banks (Note 22) B0,784,756 4,909,111 80,784,756 4,869,768
515,630,218 486,395,920 515,497,415 486,356,597

31,

Far the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
less than 90 days maturity from the date of acquisition including: cash and balances with central
Banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills, and amounts due from other Banks. Cash and cash
equivalents exclude the cash reserve requirement held with the Bank of Uganda.

Banks are required to maintain a prescribed minimum balance with the Bank of Uganda the usage
of which is subject to restrictions. The amount is determined as a percentage of the average
outstanding deposits over a cash reserve cycle period of two weeks,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Partles are considered related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over that party’s financial or operational decisions. Bank of Baroda, Mumbai
controls B0% of the total voting rights in the Bank. There are other campanies which are related to
Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited through common shareholdings or common Directarships. In the
normal course of business, current accounts are operated and placements made between the
Subsidiary companies at interest rates in line with market. Balances and transactions between the
Bank and its subsidiary, which Is a related party of the Bank, have been eliminated on consolidation,

Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disciosed below,

Separate

2018 2017

{a) Purchase of services Shs'000 Shs'000
Parent

-Management and administrative fees 1,316,093 765,757

Purchases of services from the Parent Bank have been made at prices determined In the Service
Level Agreements to reflect the nature of services provided and relationships between the
parties. In the opinion of the Directors, the transactions with the Parent Bank have been carried
out at arm’ s length.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Amounts due from/(to) overseas branches of
parent company

Bank of Baroda, Mumbai - INR

Bank of Baroda, London - GBP

Bank of Baroda, Nairobi - Kshs

Bank of Baroda, Brussels - Euro

Bark of Baroda, New York - US Dollar

Placements with overseas branches of parent company

2018
Shs'000

(90,297)
13,589,276
79,731
4,313,153
18,959,032
111,748,941

Separate
2017

Shs'000

81,609
14,764,430
22,141
4,181,029
786,607
155,894,854

148,599 836

175,730,670

The amounts outstanding relate to nostro account balances, are unsecured, and will be settled
in cash, No guarantees have been given or received. No expense has been recognised in the
current or prior years for impairment losses in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Separate
2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
(c) Outstanding balances with subsidiary
Baroda Capital Markets (U) Limited - Fixed Deposits 283,329 272,036

The amounts outstanding with the subsidiary reflect fixed deposits with maturities of 12
months offered at market rates of interest and are renewable at instructions of the subsidiary.
These balances have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The interest
accrued on fixed deposits as at the reporting date amounted to Shs 23.6 Million (2017 Shs
4.2 Million).

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the autharity and responsibility
for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the activities of the Group
and its employees. The Group considers the members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Committee to be key management personnel for the purposes of Related Party Disclosures.

Separate
2018 2017
Shs'000 Shs'000
(d) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 5,087,677 5,076,423

(e) Directors’' remuneration and benefits
Directors' remuneration and benefits 178,951 265,671
Fees for services as a director 37,483 9,386
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32, EARNINGS PER SHARE

33

34

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear,

2018 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group (Shs® 000) 73,483,459 49,405,623

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (" 000) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Basic earnings per share {Shs) 29.39 19.76

There were no potentlally dilutive shares outstanding at 31 December 2018 or 2017. Diluted
earnings per share are therefore the same as basic earnings per share,
COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

The Bank is incorporated in Uganda under the Companies Act, 2012 and has been licensed under
the Financial Institutions Act 2004 to conduct business of commercial Banking.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors of the Group or Bank are not aware of any events after the reporting period; which
may have a significant impact on the operational existence or on the financial performance of the
Group or Bank for the year.

35 RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements to enhance
comparability with the current year's financial statements. An adjustment has been made to interest
expense on borrowings on note 6 to restate the amount as an intra group adjustment of Shs 31
million of interest expense had been wrongly adjusted against interest expense on borrowings
instead of interest expense on fixed deposits.

An adjustment of Shs 13 million has also been made to the consolidated retained earnings to align
the retained earnings of the bank’s subsidiary to those of the group as there were expenses that
were erronecusly taken In the consolidated financial statements,

Notably the above adjustments have been made to enhance consistency however: the financial

statements of prior year have not been retrospectively restated as these adjustments are not
material to the consclidated and separate financial statements.
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